# NCLEX<sup>®</sup> Administration Website Boards of Nursing/ Regulatory Body Guide

Version 14.8.1

Pearson is a trademark of Pearson Education, Inc. © 2003-2014 Pearson Education, Inc. All rights reserved.

PEARSON

#### **Candidate contact information**

 Please refer to the NCLEX Candidate Bulletin for candidate contact information. The bulletin is located on the NCSBN website at ncsbn.org.

# Table of Contents

Chapter 1:Introduction	1-1
About this guide	
About the NCLEX® Administration website	I-3 1 /
Chapter 2:Basics	2-1
Logging in	
Logging out	
Navigation overview	
Searching for candidates	
Using the quick search method	
Using the Candidate Search page	
Viewing educational programs	
Search by Location	
Legating a testing contor	2-14
Chapter 3: Viewing and Changing Candidate Data	3-1
How registrations move through the exam	
process	3-2
Viewing and editing candidates by processing status	3-5
Managing incoming registrations	
Approving or denying eligibility	3-11
Viewing eligible registrations	3-13
Managing registration for exams not taken	3-15
Viewing processed registrations	3-17
Viewing denied registrations	3-19
Viewing expired registrations	3-21
Working with candidate results	3-24
Printing results and closing registrations	3-25
Viewing registrations placed on hold for results	3-30
Viewing and editing candidate details	3-33 2 25
Viewing and editing registration details	3-33
Viewing a candidate's exam history	3-42
Viewing a candidate's name changes	3-44
Viewing a candidate's address changes	
Viewing a candidate's identification information	
Viewing registration events	3-47
Chapter 4:Candidate	
Accommodations	4-1
Accommodations process	
Special cases	
Batch Processing Jurisin files	4-6
Important points about accommodations	
Supported accommodations	

Additional testing time	4-9
Special equipment or assistance	4-11
Working with accommodations	4-12
Adding accommodations requests	4-16
Revoking accommodations	4-19
Viewing or editing the list of readers (assistive personnel)	4-21
Adding a reader	4-25
Editing or deleting a reader	4-27
Chapter 5:Reports	. 5-1
About reports	5-2
Report descriptions and examples	5-3
Candidate Report	5-3
Chapter 6:Incidents	6-1
Incident overview	6-1
Viewing Incident Reports for candidate	
registrations	6-2
Chapter 7:Administration	. 7-1
Changing your jurisdiction's profile	7-2
Managing user accounts	7-5
User permissions	7-6
Displaying the Manage Users page	7-7
Editing a user account	7-8
Chapter 8:Batch Processing	. 8-1
Batch processing jurisin/jurisout files	8-2
Downloading a jurisout file	8-3
Uploading a jurisin file	8-5
Jurisin and jurisout file formats	8-6

# 1

# Introduction

This chapter covers the following topics:

- ✤ About this guide
- ✤ About the NCLEX<sup>®</sup> Administration website
- Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body user tasks

## About this guide

This guide describes how to use the NCLEX<sup>®</sup> Administration website. This guide is directed towards a Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body user.



Please note that all screen shots within this guide were created from a test environment and do not represent real candidate data. Further, screenshots contained in the guide may show functionality that is not available to boards of nursing/regulatory bodies.

This guide contains the following chapters:

- Chapter 1, "Introduction," describes the website, its purpose and the tasks you'll perform using the site.
- Chapter 2, "Basics," explains how to access the website and log in, navigate throughout the site, search for candidates and perform other general tasks.
- Chapter 3, "Viewing and Changing Candidate Data," explains how registrations move through the exam process, how to view and edit candidate records according to their status, how to work with candidate results, and how to view and edit candidate's detailed information.
- Chapter 4, "Candidate Accommodations," lists supported accommodations and explains how the accommodations process works. It explains how to add and revoke accommodations requests, add comments, and view or edit the list of readers/ assistive personnel.
- Chapter 5, "Reports," provides information about the types of reports available such as operational reports, quarterly reports and candidate performance reports.
- Chapter 6, "Incidents," explains how to view a list of incidents associated with registrations in your jurisdiction and view details about selected incidents.
- Chapter 7, "Administration," explains how, if you're assigned certain permissions, you can edit your jurisdiction's profile settings, and edit user permissions.
- Chapter 8, "Batch Processing," describes how some Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body users work with candidate data using batch files that are transferred to and from Pearson VUE. It explains how to send files (called jurisin files) to Pearson VUE and receive files (called jurisout files) from Pearson VUE, and the file format these files must use. (This chapter applies ONLY to jurisdictions that use jurisin and jurisout files to transmit data to Pearson VUE.)

## About the NCLEX<sup>®</sup> Administration website

The NCLEX Administration website allows users to process and manage records for candidates who register for and take the NCLEX. The website provides a secure, centralized location for Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body members to view candidate records and to quickly update them, set eligibility statuses and enter accommodations requests. Your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body can see at a glance how many candidates are at the various stages of the examination process and can perform additional tasks such as generating reports based on candidate data.

Although Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body members are the primary users of the website, other types of users also use the site to perform specific tasks. Only Boards of Nursing/Regulatory Body users, however, can edit candidate information.

Below is an overview of the website's main features:

- Users log in through NCSBN Passport (the portal through which you will access the NCLEX Administration Website) using their assigned usernames and passwords. When your user account was created by your administrator, you were assigned a set of **permissions** for the NCLEX Administration Website, which allows you to perform tasks such as viewing reports, changing eligibility status or editing candidate data.
- Your jurisdiction's profile contains a variety of settings. For example, one profile setting determines whether candidates' photos appear on reports. If you are assigned a specific permission, you can edit the profile; otherwise, you can view the profile's settings.
- The Flowchart page provides a high level view of the exam process and the number of registrations at each stage. If you're assigned a specific permission, you can use this page to edit candidate registrations by their status.
- Use the website's search features to locate candidates by their Name, Social Security Number (if applicable), NCLEX Candidate ID number, Date of Birth, or Phone Number. After selecting a candidate, you can view the candidate's detailed information (including accommodations information). If you're assigned a specific permission, you can edit a selected candidate's information.
- Using the website, you can add and revoke accommodations requests you receive from candidates. You can also enter comments.
- You can generate a variety of reports.
- Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body members who mark eligibility status for candidates on a different system use batch files that they transfer to and from Pearson VUE. When batch processing is used, you send import files to Pearson VUE called jurisin files and receive

export files from Pearson VUE called jurisout files.

- The Incidents page allows you to view a list of all Incident Reports associated with registrations in your jurisdiction. You can click an incident to view and print detailed information about it.
- Use the Lists page to view a listing of all educational programs, locate a testing center or view a listing of available exam readers and other assistive personnel. If you're assigned a specific permission, you can add to or edit the list of readers and assistive personnel.

## Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body user tasks

The tasks you can perform are based on your assigned permissions.



We highly recommend that one or two people at your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body jurisdiction be designated as administrators for your team with the **Users** (may edit user logins and permissions) permission. These administrators should be the only users allowed to edit other user accounts. We recommend that this be the same person who manages the NCSBN Passport access for your jurisdiction. Additional information can be found in Chapter 7.

To perform tasks, click one of the links displayed in the NCLEX Administration website's blue navigation bar that appears at the top of each page.

	Member Board NCLEX <sup>®</sup> Admin Home	NCLEX® Administration
Perform tasks by clicking links in the blue navigation bar.	Home Candidate Search Requests Profile Contact Pearson VUE Flowchart Incidents Seat Availability Searc Logout Reports Batch Processing Users You must act to the light Name and Last Name fields OR SSN	h
	First Name: Last Name: SS	N: Search
		more and the second sec

Typically, you'll focus on setting candidates' eligibility status, editing candidate information, requesting accommodations and viewing exam results.

Listed below are the tasks you may perform on the website, depending on your assigned permissions.

#### General

- Search for candidates
- View Incident Reports associated with candidate registrations
- View the list of educational programs
- Locate a testing center
- Seat availability search

#### Eligibility status

- Receive incoming candidate registrations
- Grant or deny candidate eligibility
- View eligible candidates
- View and print candidate exam results
- View candidates whose results are on hold
- View candidates who did not take their exam as scheduled
- Mark completed registrations as processed (closed)
- View processed or denied registrations

#### Candidate information

- Change a candidate's personal information (such as name, address and email address)
- Change a candidate's education program code
- View a candidate's ID information (photo and signature)
- View information about NCLEX exams a candidate has taken previously
- View a history of changes made to a candidate's name or address
- View an audit trail of changes made to a candidate's registration

#### Accommodations

- Add, change and delete accommodations requests for candidates
- View accommodations status for registrations
- View or edit the list of available readers/assistive personnel

#### Reports

You may access the reporting portal from the NCLEX Admin website

#### Batch processing

- Export candidate data, so eligibility status and other information can be edited using another system
- Upload new or updated candidate registrations for importing into the Pearson VUE database

#### Jurisdiction Profile and Administration

- Edit other accounts, including assigning permissions to use the NCLEX Administration website
- Change your jurisdiction's profile settings

## Basics

This chapter covers the following topics:

- ✤ Logging in
- Logging out
- Navigation overview
- Searching for candidates
- Viewing educational programs
- Locating a testing center

## Logging in

To start using the NCLEX Administration website, you'll need the following:

- \* a supported browser
- an NCSBN Passport username and password. All users will access the NCLEX Admin website from the NCSBN Passport portal. A designated person at each Board of Nursing/Regulatory body will assign each user specific permissions with the NCLEX Admin website.
- the Adobe Acrobat Reader. If you don't have it installed on your system, you can download it for free from Adobe's website. You will need the Reader to view and print reports such as the Candidate Report, which is provided in PDF format.

- 1. In your browser, start from the **NCSBN Passport portal** at <u>http://passport.ncsbn.org.</u>
- 2. Enter Passport login information and click the **Sign In** button.
- 3. Open the NCLEX Administration Website application.

The Home page is displayed, as shown below. This page provides access to all of the NCLEX Administration website's features.

Member Board NCLEX® Admin	Home			N	CLEX® Admin	istration
<u>Home</u> <u>Contact Pearson VUE</u> <u>Logout</u>	Candidate Search Flowchart Reports Batch Processing	<u>Requests</u> Incidents Lists Users	<u>Profile</u> Seat Availability S	<u>Search</u>		
You must enter	data in both First N	Name and L	ast Name fields OR	SSN field	for QUICK search	h to succeed.
First Name:	Las	st Name:		SSN:		Search
	Home: Minne	sota B	oard of Nursi	ng		
Below you will find an update to th Boards of Nursing with information NCLEX® examination generally.	e "info center" on a about changes/up	the NCLEX odates to th	Administration Web e Admin Web site a	site. Thi nd inforn	s is meant to pro nation relating to	the
Updates to the NCLE2 In an effort to provide transp the licensure/registration exa updates or additions to the No	X Program, Se arency to NCSBN M mination in Canada CLEX program, ser	e <b>rvices a</b> Member Bo a in 2015, v vices and s	nd Systems ards regarding the in ve will be providing ystems over the co	Last L mplemen informati ming mor	May Jpdated: May 17, tation of the NCL ion regarding any nths.	2014 2014 LEX as
Starting in June 2015:						
<ul> <li>The NCLEX Tutorial, lo</li> <li>The <u>Transitional NCLE</u></li> <li>Be available in</li> <li>Provide interim</li> <li>2014 for exam</li> </ul>	cated on the <u>Pears</u> <u>Candidate Bulleti</u> English and French information for Ca appointments start	<u>on VUE we</u> n for Cana nadian can ing in Janu	<u>bsite</u> , will be availab dian Candidates will didates registering i ary 2015	ole in Frei in Novem	nch. Iber and Decemb	ber
Please note the 2015 NCLEX licensure/registration in the U	Candidate Bulletin .S. and Canada an	will be app d will be p	icable for all candid osted in December 2	ates takiı 2014.	ng the NCLEX for	
Keep an eye out for additiona <u>NCSBN.orq</u> .	l information poste	d here and	l on the Members O	nly NCLE	X section of	
Please encourage candidates	to join NCLEX on	f and 🕻				
If you have any questions or conc Department at NCSBN.	erns about the info	ormation in	the bulletin please (	contact th	ne NCLEX Examir	nations
Link Descriptions Depending on your permissions, y	ou can perform the	e following	tasks by clicking its	link in th	ie menu above:	
<ul> <li>Home: Return to this page</li> <li>Contact Pearson VUE: S</li> <li>Logout: Log out of the We</li> <li>Candidate Search: Sear</li> <li>Flowchart: View exam re</li> <li>Batch Processing: Down</li> <li>Reports: Select report set</li> <li>Requests: View processee</li> <li>Incidents: View incident of</li> <li>Lists: View Program, Test</li> <li>Users: Manage user accool</li> <li>Profile: View or update yo</li> </ul>	end an email to Pe b site b. for a specific car load jurisout files a tings and submit re dreports and repor etails Center, and Reade ints uur jurisdiction's pr	earson VUE ndidate rec update can und upload equests t requests t requests er lists ofile	ord didate eligibility, acc jurisin files	commoda	itions and other o	data
Copyright © 199 NUE	6-2014 Pearson Edu a(s). All rights reser	ucation, Inc wed.	. or . N C	CSB Council of St	N NCLEX® Ex ate Boards of Nursing	aminations



The message board is updated with important information from NCSBN.

## Logging out

Each time you use the NCLEX Administration website, it's important to log out when you are finished. Leaving the website active without logging out could leave your data vulnerable to unauthorized use.



After 30 minutes of inactivity, the system will automatically log you out.

## Navigation overview

After you log in, the Home page displays.



The blue navigation bar appears at the top of all pages. Use it to select the area of the website in which you want to work.



At the bottom of most pages is a link that you can click to return to the previous page. To move to another page, either click this link or click a link on the blue navigation bar. (Using your browser's **Back** button to return to the previous page may display outdated information, and you'll need to refresh the page.)

Areas of the website are described below the blue navigation bar and include:

- Home: Provides a launching point for all areas of the site. Click this option to return to this page from any other page on the site.
- Contact Pearson VUE: Provides a means of sending an email to Pearson VUE.
- Log out: Click this link to log out of the site. Logging out closes all of your settings. Make sure your changes are saved prior to logging out. If you have not saved your changes, there is no warning and the site closes down without saving your changes.

- Candidate Search: Click this link to search for a specific candidate record by entering information such as the candidate's Name (full or partial), NCLEX Candidate ID, Social Security number (if applicable), Date of Birth, and Phone Number. From the search results, you can view a selected candidate's details, and if you are assigned the appropriate permissions, edit the candidate's information or registration status.
- Flowchart: Select this option to view the Flowchart page, which displays the statuses registrations are assigned in the exam process and the number of registrations with each status. From this page, you can select candidates' registrations according to their status and, with the appropriate permissions, edit their information or status.
- Batch Processing: If your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body processes candidate data using its own system and uses batch processing to transfer candidate data files, use this area to upload and download the files. (This link applies ONLY to Boards of Nursing/Regulatory Bodies that use jurisin and jurisout files to transmit data to Pearson VUE.)
- Requests: Select this option to view a list of Candidate reports that have been requested. Click a link to view the Candidate report.
- Incidents: View a list of all Incident Reports associated with NCLEX registrations in your jurisdiction. (Incident Reports are based on NCLEX registration events, which are tied to candidate records.) For example, an Incident Report may have been filed if there was an issue with the candidate's identification. From this list, select an Incident Report to view detailed information about the incident.
- Lists: View a listing of all educational programs, locate a testing center and view the listing of available exam readers/assistive personnel. (With the appropriate permission, you can add or edit the Readers list.)
- Users: If you are assigned a specific permission, you can edit user accounts for this website for your jurisdiction. These permissions can also be edited in the NCSBN Passport.
- **Profile:** Change your jurisdiction's settings.
- Seat Availability Search: Select this option to locate a test center and register a candidate for a specific exam.

## Searching for candidates

Use these search options to search for information about a specific candidate in your jurisdiction.

You can search in two ways:

- Using the quick search method.
- Using the Candidate Search page.

Important points about searching:

- To narrow your search, you can type entries in more than one search field, and the system will search for a candidate who matches ALL entries. For example, if you type the candidate's name in the **First Name** and **Last Name** fields and the first three digits of his or her Social Security number in the **SSN** field (if applicable), the system will find candidates with the name you specified whose Social Security number (if provided) also begins with the three numbers you specified.
- Searching is not case-sensitive.
- When entering a Social Security number, including dashes is optional. Note that candidates can choose not to provide a Social Security number when they register, which means you won't be able to locate those candidates using Social Security numbers.



Social Security Numbers are not applicable to Canadian or international candidates.

If your search yields more results than can be displayed on the page, a message asks you to enter more specific criteria to narrow your search.

### Using the quick search method

The blue navigation bar contains First Name, Last Name and SSN fields that you can use to search for a candidate from any page.

1. In the First Name and Last Name fields (both are required if searching by name), type the candidate's first and last name; and/or type the Social Security Number in the SSN field (if applicable).

You can type partial entries, and the system finds all candidates whose name or Social Security number (if provided) starts with the characters you enter.



Type entries in both First Name and Last Name fields OR SSN field and then click the Search button

#### 2. Click the Search button.

The Search Results page is displayed. It lists all candidates who meet the criteria you specified. If no matching records were found or more than forty candidates were found, a message is displayed, prompting you to enter new search criteria.



- 3. Click a candidate's name in the **Name** column to display his or her candidate details, or click an exam type in the **Exam** column to display the candidate's registration details.
  - On the Candidate Details page, you can edit the candidate's information if you have the appropriate permission.
  - On the Registration Details page, you can edit the candidate's registration status if you have the appropriate permission.



There is a difference between the Candidate Record and the Registration Record.

The candidate record contains the candidate's demographics and profile information.

The registration record contains information that is unique to each registration for a given examination attempt.

## Using the Candidate Search page

1. Click **Candidate Search** in the blue navigation bar.

The Candidate Search page appears, as shown below. It lists fields into which you can enter search criteria.

ber Board NCLE	X® Candidat	te Search				NCLEX® Admi	nistra
<u>Home</u> <u>Contact Per</u> <u>Logout</u>	arson VUE E B E	andidate Sea lowchart teports atch Process	irch <u>Requests</u> Incidents Lists ing <u>Users</u>	<u>Profile</u> <u>Seat Availab</u>	<u>ility Search</u>		
Yo	u must enter d	ata in both Fi	rst Name and L	ast Name field	s OR SSN fie	ld for QUICK seam	th to su
First Na	me:		Last Name:		SSN:		36
		Ca	andidate S	earch			
o search for a candi f you are using Cano natching is allowed o	date, fill in one lidate's name, n all fields EXC	or more of t you must ent CEPT for the C	he following se er data in Last Candidate ID.	arch fields and Name and Firs	l click the "S st Name fiel	Search" button. ds. Partial	
If regID is ent	ered, all other:	criteria will b	e ignored by tl	ne system.			
Last Name:	doe						
First Name:							
Middle Name:							
Cand ID:							
SSN:							
	01/01/1970						
Date of Birth:							
Date of Birth: Phone:							
Date of Birth: Phone:	Search	Clear					
Date of Birth: Phone:	Search	Clear					
Date of Birth: Phone:	Search	Clear		_			

2. Specify search criteria for the candidate you want to find.

Type entries into one or more of the search fields. Follow these guidelines:

- You can type partial entries (for all fields except the **Cand ID** field), and the system finds all candidates who match the characters you enter. Note that candidates can choose not to provide a Social Security number when they register, which means you won't be able to locate those candidates using Social Security numbers.
- You can type entries in one or more fields. Records must meet ALL of the criteria you specify in order to be found.



If you choose to search for a candidate using the name fields, you must enter information into both the first and last name fields.

- The **Cand ID** field refers to the eight-digit ID that uniquely identifies candidates.
- When entering a phone number in the **Phone** field, begin with the area code, and do NOT include dashes or parentheses. For example, type (612) 600-6000 as 6126006000.
- When entering a birth date in the **Date of Birth** field, use the format 08/12/1959 (or type the numbers only, as in 08121959).



The website enforces a date format of **mm/dd/yyyy** when searching by date of birth.

	Member Board NCLE	X® Candidate S	earch		NCLEX® Administration
	Home Contact Pe: Logout Yo	Cand arson VUE Flowc Repo Batch u must enter data i	date Search Requests hart Incidents ts Lists Processing Users	<u>Profile</u> <u>Seat Availability Search</u>	ld for OUICK search to succeed
	First Na	ime:	Last Name:	SSN:	Search
	To search for a candi If you are using Cano matching is allowed o If regID is ent	date, fill in one or r lidate's name, you n all fields EXCEPT tered, all other crite	Candidate S nore of the following sea must enter data in Last for the Candidate ID. tria will be ignored by th	Search arch fields and click the "S Name and First Name field ne system.	earch" button. is. Partial
n this search, he system will look for candidates with he last name DOE and a birth date of Jan 1, 1970.	Last Name: First Name: Middle Name: Cand ID: SSN: Date of Birth: Phone: Reg ID:	doe 01/01/1970 Search Ci	Tee		
		yright © 1996-2014 its affiliate(s). Al	Pearson Education, Inc. I rights reserved.	or <b>NCSB</b> National Council of	State Boards of Nursing

#### 3. Click the Search button.

The Search Results page is displayed. It lists all candidates who meet the criteria you specified. If no matching records were found or more than forty candidates were found, a message is displayed, prompting you to enter new search criteria.



- 4. Click a candidate's name in the **Name** column or exam type in the **Exam** column to display detailed information.
  - On the Candidate Details page, you can edit the candidate's information if you have the appropriate permission.
  - On the Registration Details page, you can edit the candidate's NCLEX registration status if you have the appropriate permission.

## Viewing educational programs

Use this area to view a comprehensive list of educational programs.



This list displays all active programs, not only those available in your jurisdiction. The list is maintained by NCSBN.

### Search by Location

1. Click Lists on the blue navigation bar.

The Lists page is displayed.

per Board NCLEX® Lists		NCLEX® A	dministrati
<u>Home</u> <u>Contact Pearson VUE</u> <u>Loqout</u>	Candidate Search         Requests           Flowchart         Incidents           Reports         Lists           Batch Processing         Users	<u>Profile Seat Availability Search</u>	
You must en	ter data in both First Name and La	st Name fields OR SSN field for QUICK	search to succ
First Name:	Last Name:	SSN:	Sea
	Lists		
NCSBN Education Programs			
Readers			
Test Center Locator			
EARSON Copyright © 1	996-2014 Pearson Education, Inc.	• • • • • NCSBN NCLE	X <sup>®</sup> Examinat

2. Click the NCSBN Education Programs link.

3. Select the Country and State/Province (if applicable) **search** options, and click **Search by Location**.

NCLEX Education P	rogram Locator A	dmin Home			NCLEX® Adm	inistration
	Home Contact Pearson VUE Logout You must ente	Candidate Search Elowchart Reports Batch Processing r data in both First N	Requests Incidents Lists Users Profile ame and Las	<u>Seat Availability</u> t Name fields OR S	<u>Search</u> SN field for QUICK se	arch to succeed.
First Name:		Last Name:		SSN :		Search
c	S To search by l hoose Country or S	earch Existi ocation, tate/Province	ng Prog	grams To se enter an Edu	arch by code, cation Program (	Code
Country: State/Prov	United States ince: Alabama Search by Lo	▼ cation	•	Sea	irch by Code	]
	opyright © 1996-2014 Pe affiliate(s). All rig	arson Education, Inc. hts reserved.	or its	NCS National Count	BN NCLEX® I	Examinations

When you search for a non-United States jurisdiction, the list is filtered by the selected Country and the program code information is displayed.

NCLEX Educat	on Program Locator A	dmin Home			NCLEX® A	dministration
	Home Contact Pearson VUE Logout	Candidate Search Elowchart Reports Batch Processing	Requests Incidents Lists Users Profile	Seat Availability	<u>Search</u>	
	You must ente	r data in both First Na	me and Last	Name fields OR S	SN field for QUIC	K search to succeed.
First Name	B)	Last Name:		SSN:		Search
	NCLEX Edu	Ication	Prod	iram l	ocato	r
Sweden	NCLEX Edu	ucation	Pro <u>ç</u>	yram L	ocato.	r
Sweden	NCLEX Edu	ICation	Prog	yram L	ocato	r

When you search for jurisdictions within the United States, the list is filtered by State and Country. The Domestic codes are displayed.

NCLEX Education	n Program Locator A	dmin Home		NCLEX®	Administration
	Home Contact Pearson VUE Logout	Candidate Search Flowchart Reports Batch Processing	Requests <u>Se</u> Incidents Lists Users Profile	at Availability Search	
First Name:	rou must ente	Last Name:	me and Last Na	SSN:	Search
Alaska, Ur	nited States		riogi		
My Town Some City Gold Rush 1ANCHORAGE ANCHORAGE Monsters Inc	US7830 US7830 US7840 US9440 US9490 US9490 US9490 US9490	0101 NCLEX Equiva 0100 NCLEX RN DI 0500 NCLEX Equiva 0500 NCLEX RN Pro 05800 NCLEX RN Pro 0000 NCLEX Specia 09300 NCLEX Reentr 09800 NCLEX Equiva	lency Program Igram Igram I Codes - RN ar Y Program Iency Program	Anchorage Universit Anchorage Universit Gold Rush Communi UNIVERSITY OF ALA UNIVERSITY OF ALA UNIVERSITY OF ALA CLOSED PROGRAM RE-ENTRY / BOARD MILITARY EQUIVALE	¥ ¥ ty College SKA SKA REQUEST NCY
Test City	US9490 US9491	19900 NCLEX RN-ed 10100 NCLEX RN Clo	ucated PN Prog Ised Program	ram <u>RN FAILURE TAKING</u> <u>City Center</u>	<u>PN</u>
	Copyright © 1996-2014 Pe. affiliate(s). All rig	arson Education, Inc. hts reserved.	or its	National Council of State Boards of	LEX <sup>®</sup> Examinations fNursing

- 4. Click the desired **Program** link.
- 5. You may also locate a program by **Education Program Code**.

Each nursing program approved by a board of nursing is identified by a unique code assigned by NCSBN.

## Search by Code

NCLEX Educatio	n Program Locator 4	dmin Home		NCLEX	R Administration
	Home Contact Pearson VUE Logout	Candidate Search Flowchart Reports Batch Processing	Requests Incidents Lists Users Profile	Seat Availability Search	OUTCK search to succeed
First Name:	Tou must ente	Last Name:	anie and Last	SSN:	Search
	S	earch Existi	ng Prog	jrams	
	To search by choose Country or S	ocation, State/Province		To search by c enter an Education Pr	code, rogram Code
Count State/	ry: United States Province: Alabama Search by Lo	• cation	•	US94405500 Search by Co	ıde
		Add New	Program		
	Copyright © 1996-2014 Pe affiliate(s). All riv	arson Education, Inc. ghts reserved.	or its	NCSBN National Council of State Board	ICLEX <sup>®</sup> Examinations ds of Nursing

1. Enter the Education Program Code and click Search by Code.

NCLEX Education P	rogram Locator A	dmin Home		NCLE	X® Administration
	Home Contact Pearson VUE Logout You must enter	Candidate Search Flowchart Reports Batch Processing data in both First Na	Requests Seat Incidents Lists Users Profile Ime and Last Nam	<u>: Availability Search</u> e fields OR SSN field fo	r QUICK search to succeed.
First Name:		Last Name:		SSN:	Search
		Progra	am Detail	s	
Program Code:	US78400300				
Program Name:	CENTRAL ALABAMA	COMMUNITY COLL	EGE		
Country:	Alabama, United Stat	es			
City:	ALEXANDER CITY				
Member Board:	Alabama Board of Nu	rsing			
Type:	NCLEX RN Closed Pro	gram			
Start Date:	06-01-1996				
End Date:					
Program Active	4				
	Return to Alaba Retur	Save ama, United States in to NCSBN Educa	Education Pro	gram list	
	pyright © 1996-2014 Pea affiliate(s). All rig	arson Education, Inc. hts reserved.	or its	NCSBN National Council of State Boar	NCLEX <sup>®</sup> Examinations

#### The Program Details page is displayed.

## Locating a testing center

Use this area to locate a Pearson Professional Center that offers the NCLEX. Testing centers are grouped by country and state/province.

1. Click Lists on the blue navigation bar.

The Lists page is displayed.

er Board NCLEX® Lists		NCLEX® Ad	ministrati
<u>Home</u> <u>Contact Pearson VUE</u> <u>Loqout</u>	Candidate Search         Requests         Profile           Flowchart         Incidents         Seat A           Reports         Lists         Batch Processing	availability Search	
You must ent	er data in both First Name and Last Nam	ne tields OR SSN tield for QUICK se	earch to suc
First Name:	Last Name:	SSN:	Sear
	LISIS		
CSBN Education Programs			
eaders			
est Center Locator			
ARSON Copyright © 19	96-2014 Pearson Education, Inc. or	NCSBN NCLEX®	Examinati

2. Click the Test Center Locator link.

The Select Country page appears, prompting you to select the country in which you want to locate a testing center.

c center Lo	cator Admin Ho	me			NOLEX® Adm	msuau
Ho Co Lor	<u>me</u> ntact Pearson VUE gout	Candidate Sea Flowchart Reports Batch Process	arch Requests Incidents Lists Users	<u>Profile</u> Seat Availability Sea	arch	
	You must enter	data in both Fin	st Name and La	st Name fields OR SSM	N field for QUICK sear	rch to succ
	First Name:		Last Name:	s	SN:	Sear
Selec		<b>ry</b> I like to test and	d click Next.			
Selec	t Count	<b>ry</b> I like to test and	d click Next.			
Selec Choose the co Country: Next »	t Count	<b>ry</b> d like to test and	d click Next.			

3. Click a **country** in the list and click **Next**.

The Select State page appears, prompting you to select the state in which you want to locate a testing center. (If you chose a country with no states or provinces, the Testing Center Locator page shown below is displayed.)

4. Click a **state/province** in the list and click **Next**.

Center L	ocator Select S	State		NCLEX® Administration
H C L	<u>lome</u> Contact Pearson V Logout	<u>Candidate Search</u> <u>Request</u> <u>Flowchart</u> <u>Incident</u> <u>Reports</u> <u>Lists</u> Batch Processing <u>Users</u>	<u>is</u> <u>Profile</u> Is <u>Seat Availability Sea</u>	<u>rch</u>
	You must er	nter data in both First Name and L	ast Name tields OR SSN	tield for QUICK search to succe
	First Name:	Last Name:	SS	N: Search
Delaware Florida Hawaii Illinois Kentucky Maryland Michigan Minnesota	itate/province/reg	₽	click Next.	
MISSOUR				



In addition to State, a Province may also be selected from this list even though the label says State.

The Testing Center Locator page appears, displaying a list of testing centers in the location you selected, along with their phone numbers and addresses. The list is sorted by city.

		NCLEX	(® Administration
Test Center Locator Admin Home		a sate and a set	
Home Candi Contact Pearson VUE Rowci Logout Batch	date Search Request hart Incider ts Lists Processing Users	sts <u>Profile</u> hts Seat Availability Search	
You must enter data in	both First Name and	Last Name fields OR SSN field for Q	UICK search to succeed.
First Name:	Last Name:	SSN:	Search
Test Center Loc	ator		
Te	est Centers in Minnes	sota, United States	
Test Centers - Sorted by City	Telephone	Address	Directions
zTest Lab - Config 191 - Srini	952-681-3662	5601 Green Valley Dr Minnesota 55437	0
ZTest Lab - Config 84 - Karyn UK	612-822-8875	123 This is Tofte St. Alexandria, Minnesota 56308	0
zTest Lab - Config 45 - Johnny's 45		10101 Lyndale Ave South Anoka, Minnesota 90210	0
zTest Lab - Config 55_Matt Huang	952-681-3721	2525 Eagle Street Anoka, Minnesota 55448	0
zTest Lab - Config 26 - Modem Dialup		Baud, Minnesota 55423	0
CC Automation 1	952-472-7558	123 First street Bemidji, Minnesota 56601	0

5. If needed, click a center's **Directions** button to display driving directions to the center. (Click the **close** window link to close the Directions window.)

# Viewing and Changing Candidate Data

This chapter covers the following topics:

- How registrations move through the exam process
- Viewing and editing candidates by processing status
- Working with candidate results
- Viewing and changing individual candidate records

# How registrations move through the exam process

The Flowchart page shown below illustrates the flow of candidate registrations in a jurisdiction as they move through the NCLEX process. (This process is described in detail on the following pages.) Use the flowchart to view and edit candidates by their status.



This section describes how registrations move through the exam process.

#### \* Registrations are received by Pearson VUE.

Candidates submit their registrations: by NCLEX Candidate website, or by calling NCLEX Candidate Services. When submitting registrations, candidates specify the jurisdiction in which they are seeking licensure/registration.

Display newly-received registrations by clicking the **New Registrations** status at the top of the diagram shown on the previous page. Typically, you change the status of new registrations to **Awaiting Eligibility** to move them from the New Registrations inbox.

#### \* Some candidates request accommodations.

In the process of registering, candidates are instructed in the *NCLEX Examination Candidate Bulletin* to request any accommodations they require as soon as possible (preferably before registering for the exam). Once you receive a candidate's accommodations request, add the request(s) to the candidate's registration using the NCLEX Administration website.

#### \* Mark the registrations as eligible or denied.

Before a candidate can schedule an appointment to take the NCLEX, the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body to which the candidate has applied must mark the registration as eligible.

When you select an NCLEX registration to review, all data from the registration and the candidate's testing history are available on the Candidate Details and Registration Details pages. If the candidate was ever denied eligibility, information about the denied registration and the denying Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body (if available) is displayed in the candidate's exam history.

After reviewing a registration, mark it as either eligible or ineligible (denied).

- If you mark the registration as **Eligible**, Pearson VUE automatically generates and sends the candidate an ATT (Authorization to Test) email, which allows him or her to schedule an exam appointment. (The ATT email is sent.)
- If you mark the registration as Denied, the Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body is responsible for notifying the candidate; Pearson VUE does not notify candidates that they have been denied eligibility. Denied candidates do not receive a refund if their registrations are marked ineligible. The candidate's registration remains in the database as a denied registration.

Important points about marking registrations as eligible or denied:

- You can mark **registrations with accommodations** as eligible any time *after* entering the accommodations requests. The candidate will not receive his or her ATT email (and cannot schedule an appointment) until all pending accommodations requests have been granted or denied by NCSBN.
- Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body users who manage their eligibility offline export all registrations awaiting eligibility to a standard formatted file. After you mark candidate eligibility using your own system, upload the records to the NCLEX Administration website for importing into the Pearson VUE system.

#### \* Candidates schedule appointments and take their exams.

Candidates can schedule exam appointments on the NCLEX Candidate website or by calling NCLEX Candidate Services. They must take their exam within the eligibility dates shown on their ATT email. (Eligibility dates are based on ATT settings in the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body's profile.)

If, for some reason, a candidate does not take the exam, he or she must start the registration process over again. You can view a list of candidates who did not take their exams by clicking the **Exam Not Taken** status on the Flowchart page.

#### \* Exam results are processed and made available.

Typically, the candidate's exam is quickly scored and his or her status is automatically changed to Result Available. You can view and print exam scores for candidates with a Result Available status at any time.

Occasionally, Pearson VUE places a hold on a candidate's exam results based on a set of defined rules. When this occurs, a designated person at Pearson VUE investigates the issue and, if necessary, consults with NCSBN. After the issue is resolved, Pearson VUE takes the necessary action, which may involve removing the hold or revoking the results.

#### \* Mark completed registrations as processed.

The **Processed Registrations** status represents the last step in the registration process. After sending exam results to candidates, you can close the candidates' registrations to move them to the Processed Registrations status. This step is not required, but doing so regularly prevents the Result Available list from growing increasingly longer.

# Viewing and editing candidates by processing status

The Flowchart page provides a view of all active candidate registrations in your jurisdiction.

Use the Flowchart page to:

- view the overall status of registrations in your jurisdiction
- select candidates according to their status, and change statuses individually or as a group
- select candidates according to their status, then change their detailed information individually



You must be assigned the **RegStatus** (may edit registration status) permission to change a candidate's registration status, and the **CandData** (may edit candidate data) permission to edit candidates' information.

1. Click Flowchart on the blue navigation bar.

The Flowchart page is displayed, as shown below.

This page gives a summary view of the candidates currently in process for your jurisdiction. It shows the number of candidates at each stage of processing.



Status	Description	Can change this status to		
New Registrations	Pearson VUE has received the candidate registration, but the Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body has not yet begun to process it.	<ul> <li>Awaiting Eligibility</li> <li>Eligible</li> <li>Denied</li> </ul>		
Awaiting Eligibility	Candidate registrations remain in this holding area until a decision is made about their eligibility.	• Eligible • Denied		
Eligible	Candidate registration has been made eligible and awaits scheduling of the exam. (Candidates can schedule appointments after receiving an ATT email, and ATT emails are sent out as soon as all accommodations requests have been resolved.)	<ul> <li>Typically changes automatically to Result Available after the candidate takes the exam</li> <li>Awaiting Eligibility (if registration was marked eligible by mistake)</li> </ul>		
Exam Not Taken	Candidate registration was made eligible and scheduled, but the exam was never taken.	Processed (closed)		
On Hold for Results	Exam has been completed, but for some reason, results were placed on hold.			
Result Available	Exam has been completed, and its results are available.	Processed (closed)		
Processed Registrations	Candidate registration was closed after exam result processing.	• none		
Denied Registrations	Candidate registration was denied eligibility.	<ul> <li>Awaiting Eligibility (if denial was made in error)</li> </ul>		
Expirations	The ATT or registration is no longer valid.	• none		

#### 2. Click a **status** on the diagram.

For example, to view new registrations, click the New Registrations status. A page displaying a list of candidates with the selected status appears, as shown for the New Registrations status below.

	Member Board NCLEX® (	Candidates				NCLEX® Adminis	tration
	Home Contact Logout	<u>t Pearson VUE</u> You must enter	Candidate Sean Elowchart Reports Batch Processin data in both First	ch Requests ; Incidents Lists g Users Profile Name and Last	Seat Availability S Name fields OR SSI	earch N field for OUICK search	to succeed.
	First Name:		Last Name:		SSN :		Search
Click a column heading to sort the list by it.	Net	w Registra	ations (Re	ceived by	Pearson V	UE)	
	Name Doe John	DOB 02/25/1980	20040994	Program US10000100	Date NOT SPECIFIED	Exam NCLEX-R&C-PN : ENL	Notes
Click a candidate name to view or edit the		02/25/1980	20040994	US10407000	NOT SPECIFIED	NCLEX-PN : ENU	
candidate's details.	Gerard, Audrey	02/25/1980	20040994	US10509300	NOT SPECIFIED	NCLEX_Breaks : ENU	
	<ul> <li>thilanapoto, thilanapodi</li> <li>Thomka, Mary</li> </ul>	06/03/1989 02/01/1970	20103977 20104040	US10509300 US10105800	NOT SPECIFIED	NCLEX-RN : ENU	Retake
	Select: - Select - V	Action:	Select -		•	Take Actio	on
Select one or more candidates	Page 5 of 5 < Back Go	o to page (# (	or candidate l	etter):	Go		
choose an action to perform		© 1996-2014 Pea affiliate(s). All rig	arson Education, In hts reserved.	nc, or its	NCSE National Council o	3 N NCLEX® Exam	ninations
	and click Action.	таке					

## 3. Use the **list controls** to display the candidate information you want.

Candidate list pages display up to 30 candidate names on the page at a time. This increases the speed at which information is displayed on the screen. When the list exceeds 30, options appear at the bottom of the page as shown in the illustration below.

- Click the **Next** or **Previous** button to display the next or previous page of candidates.
- In the **Go** field, enter the page number you want to display and click **Go**. You can also type the first letter or two of a candidate's last name in the **Go** field and click **Go** to move to names starting with that letter.

Candidate lists are sorted by last name by default. To sort by a different column, click the column's header. Note that you can enter page numbers in the Go field only if the list is sorted by name.

Enter the page number you want to display or the first letter or two of a candidate's last name and click **Go**.

	Thomka, Mary	02/01/1970	20104040 US10	105800 NOT SF	PECIFIED NC	EX-PN : ENU	Retake
Sel	ect: - Select - 🔻	Action: - S	elect -		•	Take Acti	on
Pa	ge 5 of 5 < Back G	o to page (# or	candidate letter)		Go		
PE/	Copyright	© 1996-2014 Pearso affiliate(s). All rights	on Education, Inc. or it reserved.	s National	CSBN	NCLEX <sup>®</sup> Exar Boards of Nursing	ninations

4. Perform tasks using the Flowchart page.

You can perform the following tasks through the Flowchart page.

- Manage incoming registrations
- Approve or deny eligibility
- View eligible registrations
- Manage registrations for exams not taken
- View processed registrations
- View denied registrations
- Viewing expired registrations
- Print results and close registrations
- View registrations placed on hold for results

On most of the status pages, you can view or take actions on registrations, both individually and in groups. You can also select a candidate's name on each status page and view or edit his or her detailed information.
## Managing incoming registrations

The New Registrations page functions as your inbox, listing candidates who have submitted registrations to Pearson VUE that have not yet begun to be processed by your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body.

Use this page to change one or more candidate's status to Eligible, Denied or Awaiting Eligibility. You can also select a candidate to view or change his or her information.



If you aren't going to make an immediate eligibility decision, it's a good idea for Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body users to change the status of new registrations to Awaiting Eligibility. Although that status does not have any effect on the registration, it does cause the registration to be moved to the Awaiting Eligibility area on the Flowchart page. If you don't set eligibility and don't set the status to Awaiting Eligibility, the registration will continue to be displayed on the New Registrations page.

Candidates can be assigned the New or Awaiting Eligibility status for a maximum of 365 days from the date on which the registration was received.

1. Click New Registrations on the Flowchart page.

The New Registrations page is displayed. It lists all new registrations in your jurisdiction.

lem	ber Board NCLEX® (	Candidates					NCLEX® Adminis	tration
	Home Contact Logout	<u>t Pearson VUE</u>	Can Elov Rep Bate	didate Searc vchart orts ch Processing	h Requests ; Incidents Lists 1 Users Profile	Seat Availability S	earch	
	First Name:	You must ent	er data Last	in both First Name:	Name and Last I	Name fields OR SSN SSN :	I field for QUICK search	to succee Search
	Ne	w Registr	atio	ns (Red	eived by	Pearson V	JE)	
	Name	DOB	SSN	Cand ID	Program	Graduation Date	Exam	Notes
	Doe, John	02/25/1980		20040994	US10000100	NOT SPECIFIED	NCLEX-R&C-PN : ENU	
	Fils on, Charlotte J	02/25/1980		20040994	US10407000	NOT SPECIFIED	NCLEX-PN : ENU	
	Gerard, Audrey	02/25/1980		20040994	US10509300	NOT SPECIFIED	NCLEX_Breaks : ENU	
	thilanapoto, thilanapodi	06/03/1989		20103977	US10509300	NOT SPECIFIED	NCLEX-RN : ENU	
	<u>Thomka, Mary</u>	02/01/1970		20104040	US10105800	NOT SPECIFIED	NCLEX-PN : ENU	Retak
ele	ct: - Select - 🔻	Action:	- Sele	ect -		•	Take Actio	n
Dag	e 5 of 5 < Back Go	o to page (#	or ca	ndidate le	tter):	Go		
PEA	Copyright	© 1996-2014 P affiliate(s). All ri	earson ghts re	Education, In served.	c. or its	NCSE	3 N NCLEX <sup>®</sup> Exam f State Boards of Nursing	inatio

The columns display summary information about the candidate (if provided), including name, date of birth (DOB), Social Security number (SSN) (if applicable), candidate ID number, education program, graduation date, exam type and notes. In the **Notes** column, **Retake** appears if the candidate has registered to retake the same type of NCLEX exam, **ADA Pending** appears if the registration has one or more pending accommodations requests, and **ADA Resolved** appears if the registration has accommodations requests and none of them are pending.

- To view or edit a candidate's information, click the candidate's name in the **Name** column and make changes on the Candidate Details page.
- To view or edit a candidate's registration information, click the exam type in the **Exam** column and make changes on the Registration Details page.



The Social Security Number is a field that is unique to candidates seeking licensure/registration in the United States. It is not a required field and may not be present on all candidate records. 2. Select one or more **candidates** whose status you want to change.

Select candidates by clicking the box next to their names so that a checkmark appears. To select all candidates, choose **All** in the **Select** field.

- 3. In the **Action** field, select the status you want to apply to the selected candidates (**Eligible**, **Denied Eligibility** or **Awaiting Eligibility**).
- 4. Click the Take Action button.

A message confirms that the change was saved.

## Approving or denying eligibility

You can mark registrations with a status of New or Awaiting Eligibility as Eligible or Denied.



When completing the FAIR (Free And Immediate Retest) process, Pearson VUE may need to mark a candidate as eligible in order to allow the candidate to retake the exam at no charge. This is the only case in which Pearson VUE can change a candidate's status to eligible, and can be done only with NCSBN approval.

The Awaiting Eligibility page shows all registrations that your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body has set to the Awaiting Eligibility status. Consider these the registrations your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body has taken out of its inbox to begin determining eligibility. This status is a holding area for candidate registrations until you or another Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body user marks them as eligible or denied. You can also select a candidate on this page to change his or her information.



To check whether a candidate has ever been denied eligibility, view his or her exam history.

1. Click Awaiting Eligibility on the Flowchart page.

The Awaiting Eligibility page is displayed.

ember Board NC	LEX® Candidates Home Contact Pearson VUE Logout	Candidate Search Elowchart Reports Batch Processing	Requests Seat Incidents Lists Users Drofile	NC Availability Sean	CLEX® Admin	istratior
First Name:	You must enter	data in both First N. Last Name:	ame and Last Name	e fields OR SSN fie SSN :	eld for QUICK sear	ch to succe Search
Name Doe, John	<b>DOB</b> 07/26/1	Awaiting <u>SSN</u> <u>Cand I</u> 982 201041	Eligibility 2	Graduation Date NOT SPECIFIED	Exam D <u>NCLEX-RN</u> : Ef	Note:
Select: - Select	- <b>T</b> Action	- Select -		T	Take Act	tion
	Copyright © 1996-2014 Pea affiliate(s). All rig	arson Education, Inc. hts reserved.	or its	NCSBN National Council of Sta	N NCLEX <sup>®</sup> Ext te Boards of Nursing	aminatio

The columns display summary information about the candidate, including name, date of birth (DOB), Social Security number (SSN), candidate ID number, education program, graduation date, exam type and notes. In the **Notes** column, **Retake** appears if the candidate has registered to retake the same type of NCLEX exam, **ADA Pending** appears if the registration has one or more pending accommodations requests, and **ADA Resolved** appears if the registration has accommodations requests and none of them are pending.

- To view or edit a candidate's information, click the candidate's name in the **Name** column and make changes on the Candidate Details page.
- To view or edit a candidate's registration information, click the exam type in the **Exam** column and make changes on the Registration Details page.
- 2. Select candidates whose status you want to change.

Select candidates by clicking the box next to their names so that a checkmark appears. To select all candidates, choose **All** in the **Select** field.

- 3. In the **Action** field, select a status of **Eligible** or **Denied Eligibility**.
- 4. Click the Take Action button.

A message confirms that the change was made.



The ATT email is sent after a candidate is marked eligible.

## Viewing eligible registrations

The Eligible Registrations page shows all registrations in your jurisdiction that have been marked eligible, and are awaiting scheduling or taking of the exam, and those that have been made eligible but an ATT email has not been sent because there are unresolved accommodations requests.

Use this page to view the list of eligible registrations.

1. Click **Eligible** on the Flowchart page.

stration
Search
Notes
ADA Pending
ADA Resolved
ion

The Eligible Registrations page is displayed.

The columns display information about the candidate, including name, Social Security number (SSN), candidate ID number, exam type, date on which the ATT email was sent, exam date and testing center (if scheduled) and notes. In the **Notes** column, **Retake** appears if the candidate has registered to retake the same type of NCLEX exam, **ADA Pending** appears if the registration has one or more pending accommodations requests, and **ADA Resolved** appears if the registration has accommodations requests and none of them are pending.

- To view or edit a candidate's information, click the candidate's name in the **Name** column and make changes on the Candidate Details page.
- To view or edit a candidate's registration information, click the exam type in the **Exam** column and make changes on the Registration Details page.

## Managing registration for exams not taken

The Exam Not Taken page displays registrations that were marked eligible and appointments were scheduled, but the exam was never taken. In almost all such cases, the candidate can only retake the exam by reregistering and repaying for it.

On the Exam Not Taken page, you can view registrations (and candidate details) and close them. Closing a registration moves it to the Processed Registrations status, where it remains indefinitely. Candidate registrations are assigned the Exam Not Taken status until you close them.

#### 1. Click Exam Not Taken on the Flowchart page.

NCLEX® Administration Member Board NCLEX<sup>®</sup> Candidates Requests Seat Availability Search Intact Pearson VUE Flowchart eports Lisers You must enter data in both First Name and Last Name fields OR SSN field for QUICK search to First Name: Last Name: SSN: Search Exam Not Taken Name DOB Exam Reason Notes Adair, Kristen 01/10/1980 NCLEX-RN : ENU Canceled Retake Bennett, Joan 01/10/1980 NCLEX-RN : ENU Result Voided by Client Retake Eggers, Maria 12/12/1980 NOLEX-PN : ENU No Show Feldman, Julia 12/12/1980 NOLEX-PN : ENU Result Voided by Client Graham, Jean 06/04/1970 NCLEX-RN : ENU Result Voided by Client Gunther, Robert 10/10/1980 NCLEX-PN : ENU Result Voided by Client 📄 Hamm, Melinda 10/10/1980 NCLEX-RN : ENU Result Voided by Client Retake Sandberg, John 10/10/1980 NCLEX-RN : ENU Result Voided by Client Select: - Select - 🔻 Action: - Select -. Take Action Page 1 of 464 Next > Go to page (# or candidate letter): Go Copyright © 1996-2014 Pearson Education, Inc. or its affiliate(s). All rights reserved. NCSBN NCLEX® Examinations NUE

The Exam Not Taken page is displayed.

The columns display information about the candidate, including name, date of birth (DOB), exam type, reason the exam was not taken and notes. The following reasons might appear in the **Reason** column: **Expired**, **No Show**, **Canceled** or **Error**. In the **Notes** column, **Retake** appears if the candidate was registered to retake the same type of NCLEX exam, and **ADA Resolved** appears if the registration had accommodations requests that were resolved.



The Exam Not Taken page also displays registrations that have been revoked. (NCSBN may ask Pearson VUE to revoke an exam result—for example, when the FAIR process is used.) You can change a revoked registration's status to **Closed**.

The names of no-show candidates are displayed on the NCLEX Administration website the day after their scheduled appointments.

- Click a candidate's name in the **Name** field to view his or her candidate information on the Candidate Details page.
- Click a candidate's exam type in the **Exam** field to view his or her registration details on the Registration Details page.
- 2. Select **candidates** whose registrations you want to close.

Select candidates by clicking the box next to their names so that a checkmark appears. You can also click the **Select** field and select candidates according to the reason they did not take the exam, assigned by Pearson VUE. You can select **All**, **None** (default), **Expired**, **No Show**, **Canceled** or **Error**.

- 3. Select Change Status to Closed in the Action field.
- 4. Click the Take Action button.

A message confirms that your changes were made. The registration(s) are moved from the Exam Not Taken list to the Processed Registrations list.

## Viewing processed registrations

After registrations are closed, their status is set to Processed. On the Processed Registrations page, you can view a list of closed registrations.

1. Click **Processed Registrations** on the Flowchart page.

The Processed Registrations page is displayed, listing closed registrations for the last two days.

Candidate registrations are displayed based on their exam appointment dates. If no exam was scheduled, registrations are displayed based on the date on which they were created. A message appears if there are no processed registrations for the selected date range.

ber B	oard NCLEX® Can	lidates			NCLEX® Administrat
	Home Contact Pearson VU Logout	Candidate Search Flowchart Reports Batch Processing	<u>Requests</u> Profile Incidents Seat Av Lists Users	ailability Search	1
	You must e	nter data in both First Na	me and Last Name	fields OR SSN fi	ield for QUICK search to su
	First Name:	Last	Name:	SSN	l: Sea
		Processe	ed Registrati	ons	
The	date range applies to otherwise it applies to	the exam appointment the date the registration	date, if there is one on was created.	3,	
Start Date:	May 🔻 06	✓ 2014 ✓ End Date:	May 🔻	07 🔻 2014	▼ Refresh

2. If needed, select a new date range for which to display processed registrations.

Select new dates in the **Start Date** and **End Date** fields. You can specify a range of up to 120 days.



Processed registrations remain available through the NCLEX Administration website for at least three years. Registrations for candidates who failed are always available.

#### 3. Click the **Refresh** button.

Processed registrations for the date range you selected are displayed.

Member Board N	CLEX <sup>®</sup> Candidates				NCLEX® A	dministration
16	Home Contact Pearson VUE Logout	Candidate Search Flowchart Reports Batch Processing	Requests Incidents Lists Users Profile	Seat Availability S	earch	
<b>First News</b>	You must enter	data in both First Na	ame and Las	Name fields OR SSI	I field for QUI	CK search to succeed.
First Name:		Last Name:		55141		Search
	р	rocessed R	egistra	tions		
Name	SSN Exam	Exam Da	te Result	Reason	Notes	
<u>Queue, Suzy</u>	NCLEX-PN	:ENU 07-10-20	12 Pass	Delivery Successf	1	
Start July Date:	▼ 01 ▼ 2012	▼ End Date:	August	▼ 27 ▼ 20	12 🔻 [	Refresh
	Copyright © 1996-2014 Pea affiliate(s). All righ	rson Education, Inc. ts reserved.	or its	NCSI National Gouncil	3 N NCLE of State Boards of Nu	X <sup>®</sup> Examinations rsing

The columns display information about the candidate, including name, Social Security number (SSN), exam type, date on which the exam was taken, Result (Pass or Fail), reason the exam was not taken and notes. The following reasons might appear in the **Reason** column: **Expired**, **No Show**, **Canceled** or **Error**. In the **Notes** column, **Retake** appears if the candidate was registered to retake the same type of NCLEX exam, and **ADA Resolved** appears if the registration had accommodations requests that were resolved.

- Click a candidate's name in the **Name** field to view his or her candidate information.
- Click a candidate's exam type in the **Exam** field to view his or her registration information.
- Click a candidate's result in the **Result** field to view his or her exam history.

## Viewing denied registrations

When a registration is denied, its status is set to Denied Eligibility. On the Denied Registrations page, you can view a list of denied registrations, and, if a registration was denied in error, change its status to Awaiting Eligibility.

1. Click **Denied Registrations** on the Flowchart page.

The Denied Registrations page is displayed, listing denied registrations for the last two days.

Candidate registrations are displayed based on their exam appointment dates. If no exam was scheduled, registrations are displayed based on the date on which they were created. A message appears if there are no denied registrations for the selected date range.

	oard NCLEX® Ca	ndidates				NCLEX® Adm	inistrati
	Home Contact Pearson VL Logout	<u>Candidate Se</u> <u>Flowchart</u> <u>Reports</u> <u>Batch Process</u>	arch Request Incident Lists sing Users	<u>s Profile</u> <u>s Seat Avai</u>	ilability Search		
	You must	enter data in both	First Name and	Last Name	fields OR SSN f	ield for QUICK sea	rch to suc
	First Name:		Last Name:		SSM	4:	Sear
	ine no canalates ave	allable with this sta	tus in the spec	ified date ra	nge.		
The	e date range applies t otherwise it applies	to the exam appoin to the date the reg	itment date, if gistration was	there is one, created.	nge.		
The Start Date:	At a transfer applies to the t	to the exam appoint to the date the region $5 \cdot 2014 \cdot 10^{-10}$	End Date:	there is one, created.	07 <b>▼</b> 2014	▼ Refresh	

2. If needed, select a new **date range** for which to display denied registrations.

Select new dates in the **Start Date** and **End Date** fields. You can specify a range of up to 120 days.



Denied registrations remain available through the NCLEX Administration website for at least three years.

3. Click the **Refresh** button.

Denied registrations for the date range you selected are displayed.

Aember Board NC	LEX <sup>®</sup> Candidates			N	CLEX® Administration
	Home Contact Pearson VUE Logout	Candidate Search Flowchart Reports Batch Processing	Requests Incidents Lists Users Profile	Seat Availability Sea	nch
First Name:	Tod most enter	Last Name:		SSN:	Search
		Denied Re	gistratio	ons	
Name Queue, Suzy	<b>DOB</b> 5 06/30/1992	55N Cand ID 20103442	Exam NCLEX-RN : I	Notes ENU ADA Resolved	
Start Date: June	▼ 01 ▼ 2013	▼ End Date:	June	▼ 30 ▼ 2013	▼ Refresh
Select: - Select	- • Action:	- Select -		T	Take Action
PEARSON	Copyright © 1996-2014 Pea affiliate(s). All rigi	arson Education, Inc its reserved.	. or its	National Council of St	N NCLEX <sup>®</sup> Examinations ate Boards of Nursing

The columns display information about the candidate, including name, date of birth (DOB), Social Security number (SSN), candidate ID number (Cand ID), exam type and notes. In the **Notes** column, **Retake** appears if the candidate was registered to retake the same type of NCLEX exam, and **ADA Resolved** appears if the registration had accommodations requests that were resolved.

- Click a candidate's name in the **Name** field to view his or her candidate information.
- Click a candidate's exam type in the **Exam** field to view his or her registration information.
- 4. If needed, change a candidate's status from **Denied** to **Eligible**.
  - Click the box next to a candidate's name so that a checkmark appears.
  - In the Action field, select Change Status to Awaiting Eligibility.
- 5. Click the Take Action button.

A message confirms that the change was made.

## Viewing expired registrations

Pearson VUE identifies ATTs and registrations that are no longer valid and separates them from other candidate records in the database. A software utility searches the database each evening and flags expired registrations.

#### Expired ATTs

An ATT expires if a candidate was declared eligible to take an exam, but the ATT end date has passed.

- An ATT remains valid until midnight on the ATT end date. After that, the candidate cannot schedule an appointment.
- If a candidate's ATT expires, the registration is moved to the Expirations box on the Flowchart page on the Administration website.
- If a candidate's ATT expires, the Candidate website indicates this.
- If a Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body uses batch processing and has asked to receive expired ATTs in the jurisout file, the jurisout file will contain a Service Order Cancel for expired ATTs. The Service Order Cancel Reason is 5 (Error/Registration Expired).

#### Expired registrations

According to NCSBN policy, candidate registrations expire if one year has passed since the registration was created, and the registration is still in the New or Awaiting Eligibility stage (meaning the candidate was never declared eligible to take an exam and was never denied eligibility).

- Registrations remain valid until midnight on the 365th day after they are created. Candidates with expired registrations who want to take an exam must re-register, pay the examination fee again and be declared eligible by a Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body.
- The candidate registration confirmation letter informs candidates that registrations expire in 365 days. If a candidate's registration expires, the Candidate website indicates why the registration expired.
- If a candidate's registration expires, the registration is moved to the Expirations box on the Flowchart page on the Administration website.
- If a Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body uses batch processing and has asked to receive expired registrations in the jurisout file, the jurisout file will contain a Service Order Cancel for expired registrations. The Service Order Cancel Reason is 5 (Error/ Registration Expired).

Viewing expiration information on the website

The Expirations status separates expired registrations from other registrations and allows you to view expired registrations.

1. Click **Expirations** on the Flowchart page.

The Expirations page is displayed, listing candidates with ATTs and registrations that expired within the last two weeks. A message appears if there are no expired registrations for the last two weeks.

hor D.	and NCLEV® Can	lidator		N	ICLEX® Admin	stration
iber bi	Home Contact Pearson VU Logout	E Flowchart Reports Batch Processing	Requests Profile Incidents Seat Av Lists Users	ailability Search	- 3	-
	You must er	nter data in both First Nar	ne and Last Name	fields OR SSN field	d for QUICK search	to succeed
	First Name:	Last	Name:	SSN:		Search
		Ex	pirations			
There a The	re no candidates avail date range applies to otherwise it applies to	able with this status in th the exam appointment d o the date the registratio	e specified date ra late, if there is one n was created.	inge.		
There a The Start Date:	re no candidates avail date range applies to otherwise it applies to May <b>v</b> 06	able with this status in th the exam appointment d the date the registration 2014      End Date:	e specified date ra late, if there is one n was created. May •	nnge. , 07 ▼ 2014 ▼	Refresh	

2. If needed, select a new **date range** for which to display expired registrations.

Select new dates in the **Start Date** and **End Date** fields. You can specify a range of up to 120 days.

3. Click the **Refresh** button.

Expired registrations for the date range you selected are displayed.

nber Board NCL	.EX® Candi	dates		NCLEX® Administration
	Home <u>Contact Pears</u> Logout	Candidate S on VUE Flowchart Reports Batch Proce	earch Request Incident Lists ssing Users Profile	ts Seat Availability Search Is
First Name:	You r	nust enter data in both I Last Name:	First Name and L	ast Name fields OR SSN field for QUICK search to succe SSN: Search
		Ex	pirations	
Name	DOB	Exam	Reason	Notes
Brady, Doreen L	08/16/1990	NCLEX-RN : ENU	ATT Expired	
Jacobson, Marcia	02/02/1981	NCLEX-PN : ENU	Expired	
Sharpe, Amanda	01/01/1980	NCLEX-RN : ENU	Expired	
Kpitester, Miguel	03/06/1975	NCLEX-RN-1 : ENU	ATT Expired	Retake
Urdahl, Debra B	07/11/1980	NCLEX-PN : ENU	ATT Expired	
Williams, Victoria L	05/02/1958	NCLEX-PN : ENU	ATT Expired	
Start Date: August	▼ 13 ▼	2014 V Dat	d te: August	27      2014      Refresh     N C S B N NCLEX* Examinatio

Columns on the Expirations page display information about the candidate, including name, date of birth (DOB), exam type, notes and Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body. The **Reason** column contains either "**ATT Expired**" or "**Registration Expired**." You can click this column heading to sort registrations by reason.

- Click a candidate's name in the **Name** field to view his or her candidate information.
- Click a candidate's exam type in the **Exam** field to view his or her registration information. If you view the Registration Details page for an expired registration, "Expired" will be displayed in the Status field. The Reason field will contain either "ATT expired" or "Registration Expired on [date]."

## Working with candidate results

Once the candidate completes the exam, the results are automatically scored at the testing center. They are then sent to Pearson VUE for rescoring and verification. Once that process is complete, the results are posted to the NCLEX Administration website. Results may be available on the same day on which the exam was taken; however, Pearson VUE has 48 hours to distribute results to the NCLEX Administration website.

You can view a candidate's exam results in one of two ways:

- By clicking the **Result Available** status on the Flowchart page and selecting a candidate from the list. With the appropriate permission, you can also print candidate results reports and mailing labels and generate a summary report from the Result Available page.
- By searching for the candidate and clicking the Exam History link at the bottom of the Candidate Details or the Registration Details page.

To display registrations for which the exam has been completed but the results have been placed on hold, see "Viewing registrations placed on hold for results".



If your Member Board subscribes to the Quick Results service, candidates can receive an unofficial pass/fail result via the NCLEX Candidate website.

Regulatory Bodies do not subscribe to the Quick Results service.

After viewing and printing results, you can close candidates' registrations, which changes their status from Result Available to Processed.



You must be assigned the **RegStatus** (may edit registration status) permission to change a candidate's registration status.

## Printing results and closing registrations

As soon as a candidate's exam is scored, the candidate's registration status automatically changes from Eligible to Result Available. When a registration's status is Result Available, you can view and print exam results. Printing results generates a Candidate Report for those who passed and a Candidate Performance Report for those who failed.

After you have completed your own exam results processing (for example, notifying candidates and mailing certificates), you can change the registrations' status to Closed. This moves them to the Processed Registrations status, where they remain. Closing registrations keeps the Result Available list from growing too large, and ensures that the Result Available status contains new results only.

You can generate candidate reports in several ways:

- On the **Result Available** page, as described below. After selecting candidates, you can generate candidate reports for them, close their registrations, or generate candidate reports AND close their registrations at the same time.
- Click the Generate Candidate Report link on the Candidate Details page. Clicking this link generates a candidate report but does not close the candidate's registration.
- 1. Click Result Available on the Flowchart page.

The Result Available page is displayed, listing candidates who have completed their exams and whose results are available. (If there are more than 30 candidates in the list, the results are listed on multiple pages.) On this page, you can select the candidates for whom you want to print results, then either generate the reports and close the registrations or generate the reports without changing registration status.

emb	er Board NCLEX <sup>(</sup>	® Can	didates				NCLEX®	Admin	istratior
	Horr Cont Loge	ne tact Pea Dut Yo	a <u>rson VUE</u> u must enter	Candidate Elowchart Reports Batch Proo	Search Requests Sea Incidents Lists assing Users Profile First Name and Last Nar	at Availability : me fields OR SS	Search	ICK searc	h to succe
	First Name:	222		Last Name:		SSN :			Search
				Resu	lt Available				
	Name	SSN	Cand ID	ATT #	Exam	Exam Date	Center	Result	Notes
	Anderberg, Beverly		20077529	V0026734	NOLEX-RN : ENU	07-12-2010	200050098	Fail	Retake
	Anderstrom, Naomi C		20077996	V0027169	NCLEX-PN : ENU	09-14-2010	200050206	Fail	ADA Resolved
	Campbell, Sally W	987- 65- 4321	20077029	V0026168	NGLEX-PN : ENU	04-28-2010	200050151	Fail	
	Kybori, Kim P		20102881	V0052497	2ND DAY APPT : ENU	03-15-2013	61030		ADA Resolved
	Nasser, Joseph N		20102881	V0052496	NOLEX-PN : ENU	03-14-2013	61030	Fail	ADA Resolve
	Ramirez, Gabriella A	677- 67- 7677	20100884	V0050471	NGLEX-PN : ENU	05-09-2012	61030	Pass	
Sele	ct: - Select - 🔻 ,	Action	: - Select -	8			T	Take	Action
Pag	Report O e 1 of 49 Next >	ptions	::   Create dou   Create mai   Create sum <b>to page (</b> #	ble-sided ca ling labels w mmary report <b># or candi</b>	ndidate reports when creating candidate when creating candida date letter):	reports ste reports Go			
EAR	SON Copyrig	pht © 19 affilia	996-2014 Pea ate(s). All righ	arson Educati hts reserved.	on, Inc. or its	NCS	BN NCL of State Boards of J	EX <sup>®</sup> Exa	minatio

The columns on this page display information about the candidate, including name, Social Security number (SSN), candidate ID number (Cand ID), ATT number, exam type, date on which the exam was taken, testing center at which it was taken, exam result (Pass/Fail) and notes. In the **Notes** column, **Retake** appears if the candidate retook the same type of NCLEX exam and **ADA Resolved** appears if the registration has accommodations requests that were resolved.



In addition to the NCLEX exam, a second exam type known as **NCLEX-R&C** may appear in the **Exam** column. NCLEX-R&C refers to a Review & Challenge exam, where a candidate who fails can question his or her results. After paying another fee, the candidate schedules an NCLEX-R&C exam, which shows the answers the candidate gave for items he or she answered incorrectly. Since a Review and Challenge exam is not scored, **Taken** appears in the Result column instead of Pass or Fail. The Review & Challenge exams are only available to Member Boards. Regulatory Bodies do not offer Review & Challenge exams. 2. **View** selected candidate results.

Click the **Pass** or **Fail** link in the Result column for the candidate whose results you want displayed. The Exam History page displays, showing exam or event date (Appt), exam type, testing center, exam status, result and accommodations granted.

ember Bo	ard NCLEX <sup>(</sup>	<sup>®</sup> Candidat	tes			NCLE	X® Administration
	Hom Cont Logi	ne tact Pearson \ but You must	Candic /UE Flowch Report Batch	late Search iart S Processing both First N	i <u>Requests</u> <u>Seat Av</u> Incidents Lists Users <u>Profile</u> Jame and Last Name fi	vailability Search elds OR SSN field fo	or QUICK search to succee
First N	lame:	United weather	Last Na	ime:		SSN:	Search
			Exam H	istory:	NCLEX Cana	da	
Appt	Exam	Center	Status	Result	Granted Accommodations	Member Board	
	NCLEX-RN- 1: FRC					College of Registe Manitoba(86)	ered Nurses of
08-29- 2014	NCLEX-RN : ENU	200080293	Delivery Successful	Fail		Minnesota Board	of Nursing(10)
03-06- 2014	NCLEX-RN: ENU	61030	Taken			Wisconsin Depart Professional Servi	ment of Safety & ces(50)
			1	Return to P	Previous Page		
	Copyrig	ght © 1996-20 affiliate(s).	14 Pearson Ed All rights reser	ucation, Inc ved.	. or its	NCSBN ational Council of State Boa	NCLEX <sup>®</sup> Examination



Only the Boards of Nursing/Regulatory Body where candidates have applied for licensure can see the exam history. Accommodations and Pass/Fail information will only be available to the registration where the candidate applied for licensure.

The **Status** column indicates the exam's current status.

If the candidate was previously denied eligibility, the jurisdiction in which he or she was denied is displayed (if available). Click the **Return to Previous Page** link to return to the Result Available page.

3. On the **Result Available** page, select candidates whose registrations you want to close and/or for whom you want to print candidate results.

You can select candidates in one of two ways:

- Click the box next to the name of each candidate so a checkmark appears.
- Choose an option from the Select field. You can choose All, None (default), Passed or Failed.

#### 4. In the **Action** field, select an option.



- Choose **Generate Reports and Change Status to Closed** to print candidate reports and change the status of the selected registrations to Processed.
- Choose Generate Reports and Close for Results Across All Pages to print candidate reports for all pages, and change the registrations' status to Processed. (This option works the same as the Generate Reports and Change Status to Closed option, but applies to ALL candidates whose names are listed in the current set of results, regardless of whether they are shown on the page that is displayed.)
- Choose **Generate Candidate Reports** to print candidate reports without changing the status of the selected registrations.
- Choose Generate Candidate Reports for Results Across All Pages to print candidate reports for all pages, without changing registration status. (This option works the same as the Generate Candidate Reports option, but applies to ALL candidates whose names are listed in the current set of results, regardless of whether they are shown on the page that is displayed.)
- Choose **Change Status to Closed** to change the status of the selected registrations to Processed without printing reports.

If your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body prints its own results reports, it is best to choose the **Generate and Change Status to Closed** or the **Generate Reports and Close for Results Across All Pages** option; this way, the registration will be removed from the Result Available page, and you will know that you have already sent the results to the candidate.

If you closed one or more registrations, a message confirms that the changes were made. If you generated a report, the Report Requests page is displayed, with the candidate report listed at the top of the page.

- 5. Click the **Take Action** button.
- 6. **View** the reports.

All report requests are listed. Locate the desired report and click the link.

lember Bo	ard NCLEX® Candid	dates			NCLEX	® Administration
	<u>Home</u> <u>Contact Pearson VUE</u> <u>Logout</u>	Candidate Sea Flowchart Reports Batch Processi	rch <u>Requests</u> Incidents Lists ng <u>Users</u>	<u>Profile</u> Seat Availabili	t <u>y Search</u>	
	You must ente	r data in both Fir	st Name and La	st Name fields	DR SSN field for QU	JICK search to succee
	First Name:		Last Name:		SSN:	Search
Reports i One set of	requested by Mike M f Candidate Results rep	lacIsaacs orts has been su	bmitted.			
Report	Requested					
Candidate	e Results 08 May 2014	- 04:24 PM				
Show all 1	report requests					

The candidate report opens in a new tab. If multiple candidates were selected, each candidate report is printed on a separate page within the document.

NCLEX-PN <sup>®</sup> CANDIDATE REPORT National Council Licensure Examination for Practical Nurses		BAMINATIONS		
Test Date:	03/12/13			
Test Center:	61030 - Bloomington	Suttors		
1303 ALLCORRECT 654 asdf st mahwah, NJ 07430 United States				
Candidate Number: Date of Birth: Social Security Number:	20102847 01/05/1980			
Program Code:	US10105800			
Program Name: A	LAKE SUPERIOR COLLEGE DULUTH,MN			

## Viewing registrations placed on hold for results

Occasionally, a candidate's results are placed on hold. This usually occurs automatically. For example, results are placed on hold if a certain type of Incident Report has been filed against the registration, if something unusual occurred during the exam (such as the candidate spent a great deal of time on the tutorial), or if an irregularity appeared in the exam results.

Pearson VUE works to resolve all holds as quickly as possible. While the majority of holds are released quickly, some may take longer to resolve. Use the On Hold for Results page to display registrations for which the exam has been completed, but the results have been placed on hold. You can also select candidates on this page to change their information.

1. Click **On Hold For Results** on the Flowchart page.

NCLEX® Administration Member Board NCLEX<sup>®</sup> Candidates Candidate Search Requests Seat Availability Search Flowchart Incidents optact Pearson VLIE Lists Batch Processing Users Profile You must enter data in both First Name and Last Name fields OR SSN field for QUICK search to succeed Search First Name: Last Name: SSN: On Hold for Results Name DOB Exam Notes Bernstein, Lisa M 09/03/1960 NCLEX-RN : ENU On Hold: Manual On Hold: Exam Time Minimum Exceeded, Unusual Response Pattern-FIT Chambers, Mia Q 04/03/1957 NCLEX-PN : ENU Eppert, Michelle 10/10/1980 NCLEX-RN : ENU Retake; On Hold: Miller, Shirley 10/10/1980 NCLEX-RN : ENU Retake; On Hold: Olson, Elizabeth 10/10/1980 NCLEX-RN : ENU Retake; On Hold: 📄 Rodrigez, Theresa J 10/10/1980 NCLEX-RN : ENU ADA Resolved; On Hold: Manual Select: - Select - Y Action: - Select -. Take Action **Report Options:** Create double-sided candidate reports Create mailing labels when creating candidate reports Create summary report when creating candidate reports Page 1 of 42 Next > Go to page (# or candidate letter): Go ۰**.**\*\* Copyright © 1996-2014 Pearson Education, Inc. or its affiliate(s). All rights reserved. NCSBN NCLEX® Examinations NUE neil of State Boards of Nursing

The On Hold for Results page is displayed.

The columns on this page display information about the candidate, including name, date of birth (DOB), exam type and notes. (If there are more than 30 candidates in the list, the results are listed on multiple pages.) In the **Notes** column, **Retake** appears if the candidate retook the same type of NCLEX exam and **ADA Resolved** appears if the registration has accommodations requests that were resolved.

- Click a candidate's name in the **Name** field to view his or her candidate information.
- Click a candidate's exam type in the **Exam** field to view his or her registration information.
- 2. Select **candidates** for whom you want to print candidate results.

You can select candidates by clicking the box next to the name of each candidate so a checkmark appears. To select all candidates, choose **All** in the **Select** field.



Proxy users will not see check boxes next to candidate names.

- 3. In the **Action** field, select an option.
  - Choose **Generate Candidate Reports** to print candidate reports for candidates displayed on the page.
  - Choose Generate Candidate Reports Across All Pages to print candidate reports for all pages. (This option works the same as the Generate Candidate Reports option, but generates reports for candidates whose names are listed in the current set of results, but are not shown on the page that is displayed.)

If you generated a report, the Report Requests page is displayed, with the candidate report listed at the top of the page.

4. **View** the reports.

All report requests are listed. Locate the desired report and click the link.

iber Bo	oard NCLEX® Candid	lates		NCLEX® Administrati
	Home Contact Pearson VUE Logout	Candidate Search         Requi-           Flowchart         Incide           Reports         Lists           Batch Processing         Users	ests <u>Profile</u> ents Seat Availability Sear	<u>ch</u>
	You must ente	r data in both First Name ar	d Last Name fields OR SSN	field for QUICK search to suc
	First Name:	Last Name	: 55	SN: Sea
Donorte	requested by Mike M	acIsaacs		
One set o	of Candidate Results rep	orts has been submitted.		
One set o Report	of Candidate Results rep Requested	orts has been submitted.		
One set of Report	of Candidate Results rep Requested te Results 08 May 2014 -	orts has been submitted. 04:24 PM		
One set of Report Candida Show all	of Candidate Results rep Requested te <u>Results</u> 08 May 2014 - report requests	orts has been submitted. 04:24 PM		

The candidate report opens in a new tab. If multiple candidates were selected, each candidate report is printed on a separate page within the document.



# Viewing and changing individual candidate records

You can view records for candidates who have registered with your jurisdiction. To edit candidate records, you must have the **CandData** (may edit candidate data) permission.



Once a registration is entered or imported into the Pearson VUE system, Pearson VUE employees may make changes to candidate data up until eligibility is reached. Once eligibility is reached no one at Pearson VUE can change the candidate's name or demographic data, and candidates cannot change information via the NCLEX Candidate website. Candidates are instructed to call the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body for any changes that need to be made.

Candidate data is displayed on two pages:

 Name and demographic information appears on the Candidate Details page.



The candidate's ethnicity is moving from the Candidate Details page to the Registration Details page. The candidate will choose an ethnicity each time he/she registers for an exam.

 Registration status, accommodations and authorization information appears on the Registration Details page.

You can locate candidate records in several ways:

- by searching for them individually.
- by displaying candidates according to their status, as described below.
- 1. Click **Flowchart** on the blue navigation bar.

The Flowchart page is displayed.

2. Select the **status** for which you want to view registrations.

The status page is displayed. (In the example shown below, the Result Available status page is displayed.)

	Member Board NCLEX <sup>®</sup> Candidates	NCLEX® Administration
	Home <u>Candidate Search</u> Requests <u>Seat Availability</u> Contact Pearson VUE <u>Flowchart</u> Incidents Logout Reports Lists Batch Processing Users Profile	Search
	You must enter data in both First Name and Last Name fields OR S First Name: Last Name: SSN:	SN field for QUICK search to succeed. Search
Click a	Result Available	
candidate's name	Exam Name <u>SSN Cand ID</u> ATT # <u>Exam</u> Date	Center Result Notes
in this column to	Anderberg, Beverly 20077529 V0026734 NCLEX-RN : ENU 07-12-2010	/ 200050098 <u>Fail</u> Retake
Candidate Details	Anderstrom, Naomi 20077996 V0027169 NCLEX-PN : ENU 09-14-2010	1 200050206 <u>Fail</u> ADA Resolved
page.	Campbell, Sally W 987- 20077029 V0026168 NCLEX-PN : ENU 04-28-2010 65- 4321	) 200050151 <u>Fail</u>
	Kybori, Kim P         20102881         V0052497         2ND DAY APPT : ENU         03-15-2013	; 61030 ADA Resolved
Click a candidate's exam type in this	<u>Nasser, Joseph N</u> 20102881 V0052496 <u>NCLEX-PN</u> : ENU 03-14-2013	; 61030 <u>Fail</u> ADA Resolved
column to display the Registration Details	Ramirez, Gabriella A 677- 20100884 V0050471 NCLEX-PN : ENU 05-09-2012 67- 7677	: 61030 <u>Pass</u>
page.	Select: - Select -  Action: - Select -	▼ Take Action
	Report Options:            Ø Create double-sided candidate reports             ① Create mailing labels when creating candidate reports             ① Create summary report when creating candidate reports             Page 1 of 49 Next > Go to page (# or candidate letter):             Copyright @ 1996-2014 Pearson Education, Inc. or its         affiliate(s). All rights reserved.	BN NCLEX <sup>®</sup> Examinations of of State Boards of Nursing

Click a link in the **Name** column to display the Candidate Details page, or click a link in the **Exam** column to display the Registration Details page.

## Viewing and editing candidate details

The Candidate Details page displays name and demographic information.

If you are assigned the **CandData** (may edit candidate data) permission, you can make changes to a candidate's information on this page at any point in the NCLEX exam process, even after the registration is closed.

1. Display the **Candidate Details** page for a selected candidate by clicking the candidate's name.

	Member Board NCLEX	) Candidates				NCLEX® Ad	ministratio
	Hom Cont Logo	e ar <u>t Pearson VUE</u> ut You roust enter	Candidate Se. Flowchart Reports Batch Process data in both Fir	arch Requests s Incidents Lists users Profile	ieat Availability S	Search	search to succ
	First Name:		Last Name:		SSN:		Searc
		Candidat	e Details	:: Beverly A	Anderber	g	
	Candidate ID:	20077529					
	Last Name:	1007		Date of Birth:	10 •	October 🔻	1980 🔻
	First Name:	DDDD		Gender:	Female		
	Middle Name:	d			Male		
	Maiden Name:			SSN:			
	Mother's Maiden Name:			Reason No SSN:			
	Other Last Name:			CGFNS:	Yes No Not Applica	ble	
	Date Used:	Month ▼ Year ▼		CGFNS Number:			
	Taken Pre 1994:	RN PN					
	Address:	123 test		Language:			
	City:	minneanolis		Home Phone:	555-555-5555		
	State:	Minnesota	•	Work Phone:		3	
	Country:	United States		Email:	d@d.com		
	ZIP code:	55437					
these links to view	Related Information Exam History   Nam	: ne History   Co	ntact Histor	¥			
candidate.			[	Save			
	PEARSON Copyrig	ht © 1996-2014 Pea affiliate(s). All righ	rson Education, its reserved.	. Inc. or its	NCS National Council	B N NCLEX	<sup>B</sup> Examinatio

- 2. Edit fields as needed.
  - **Candidate ID:** Displays the NCLEX Candidate ID that uniquely identifies candidates in the Pearson VUE system. NCLEX Candidate IDs consist of an eight-digit number. This field cannot be edited.



Candidates are asked to provide all of the following information when they register. However, the only **required** fields are the *first* and *last name*, *date of birth*, *address* and *phone* fields. If the candidate did not provide all requested information, the other fields may be blank.

- Last Name, First Name and Middle Name: Display the candidate's name.
- Maiden Name and Mother's Maiden Name: Display a maiden name and the candidate's mother's maiden name.
- **Other Last Name** and **Date Used:** Display other last names used by the candidate and when they were used. Enter dates using the format MM/DD/YYYY (as in 01/01/2002).
- **Date of Birth:** Displays the candidate's date of birth. Enter dates using the format MM/DD/YYYY (as in 05/15/1962).
- Gender: Identifies the candidate's gender.
- **SSN:** Displays the candidate's Social Security number. Typing dashes when entering the number is optional.



SSN is only used by candidates seeking licensure/ registration in the United States or a US Territory. It is not a required field and is not used for licensure/ registration outside of the US or US Territories.

- **Reason No SSN:** Displays the reason (if any) the candidate did not provide a Social Security number on the registration. Selections include: Not a U.S. citizen, Applied for but have not received SSN, and Choose not to provide SSN.
- **CGFNS:** Displays the candidate's answer to the question, "Do you have a CGFNS certification?" (Yes, No or Not Applicable). CGFNS refers to The Commission on Graduates of Foreign Nursing Schools. Some jurisdictions require non-US educated candidates to provide a CGFNS certification number when registering for an NCLEX exam.
- **CGFNS Number:** Displays the candidate's CGFNS number, if it was provided.

- **Taken Pre 1994:** Displays whether or not a candidate had taken an exam before January 1, 1994 (it does not, however, specify for what Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body the candidate took the exam). If either RN or PN are listed as "Yes", the candidate will be designated as a repeater in the system and this information will be reflected throughout the website (e.g., Exam History). This information can be viewed on the Candidate Details and Registration Details pages by Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body and NCSBN users of the website, but only Pearson VUE can change values in this field.
- Address, City, State, Country and ZIP code: Display the candidate's mailing address. Change or complete these fields as needed.
- **Language:** Indicates the language the candidate identified on the application.
- Home Phone, Work Phone and Email: Display the candidate's contact information.
- 3. Click the links in the **Related Information** area to display other candidate information, as needed.
  - **Exam History:** Displays information about all NCLEX exams for which the candidate has registered and taken within or outside of the jurisdiction. Only boards where candidates have applied for licensure can see the exam history. Accommodations and Pass/Fail information will only be available to the registration where the candidate applied for licensure.
  - **Name History:** Displays changes made to the candidate's name by a Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body user.
  - **Contact History:** Displays changes made to the candidate's address by a Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body user.
- 4. Click the **Save** button to save your changes.

## Viewing and editing registration details

The Registration Details page displays registration status, accommodations and authorization information.

You can change the candidate's status on this page if you are assigned the **RegStatus** (may edit registration status) permission. You can make changes to a candidate's registration details up to the time the candidate takes the exam.

1. Display the **Registration Details** page for a selected candidate by clicking the **Exam** link for the candidate.

	Member Board NCLEX <sup>®</sup> Candidates		NCLE	X® Administration
	Home C Contact Pearson VUE F Logout F	landidate Search Rei lowchart Inc leports Lis latch Processing Us Pro	quests Seat Availability Search idents ts ers office a New Solds Op Con Sold (	
	First Name:	ast Name:	SSN:	Search
		Registration	Details	
	Basic Information: Candidate: Anderhem, Beverly A		Exam: NCLEX-RN	1
	Status: New Program: US10406900 NORMANDALE COMMU BLOOMINGTON MN Change Program	VITY COLLEGE	Exam Language: English Graduation Date:Month Member Board : Minnesota	▼ Year ▼ Board of Nursing
	Accommodations: None Manage Accommodation Ethnic Group: White	Re Ins	egistration Source: NCLEX Ca	ndidate Web Site
	Authorization Information:		where he had a	
	Center: ATT #: V0054099		Appt: MB ID:	
	ATT Start: NOT YET AVAILABLE ATT End: NOT YET AVAILABLE		Taken NCLEX: No for Same License: No	
		for	r Different License: No Taken Pre 1994: RN: No PM	V: No
	Status: New Reason:			
ick these links to view	Related Information: Exam History   ID Files   Audit Trail	No Incidents		
ated information for e candidate.		Save		
	Copyright @ 1996-2014 Pears affiliate(s). All rights	on Education, Inc. or it ; reserved.	NCSBN National Council of State Boo	NCLEX <sup>®</sup> Examination ands of Nursing

- 2. In the Basic Information area, edit fields as needed.
  - **Candidate:** Click the candidate's name link in this field to display his or her candidate details.
  - **Status:** Displays the candidate's current status. This field cannot be edited. (A **Status** field also appears in the Authorization Information area below for users who have permission to edit candidate's eligibility status.)
  - **Program** and **Change Program:** Displays the candidate's educational program. If the program was selected in error, you can select another program by clicking the **Change Program** link and choosing another program from the list of educational programs maintained by NCSBN.
  - Accommodations: Displays the overall status
     of accommodations requests, which can be None (no requests),
     Pending (one or more requests are pending), or Resolved
     (all requests have been granted or denied). Below the status,
     accommodations requested and their status are displayed,
     which can be Open, Granted, Denied or Revoked. Below
     the requests is a Manage Accommodations link you can click
     to add, edit or delete accommodations requests.
  - **Exam:** Displays the exam type for which the candidate has registered (NCLEX-RN, NCLEX-RN 1, NCLEX-PN or NCLEX-R&C). This field cannot be edited.
  - **Exam Language:** Displays the language for which the candidate registered to take the exam. This field cannot be edited.
  - **Graduation Date:** Displays the date on which the candidate graduated from the program selected in the **Program** field at left. (If the candidate hadn't yet graduated when he or she registered, the date on which he or she finished the program's coursework may have been entered instead.)
  - **Member Board:** Displays the member board under which the candidate registered for the exam.
  - **Registration Source:** Displays how the registration entered the Pearson VUE database. Valid sources include:
    - VUE Registration Center (registration taken by phone through the Call Center)
    - VUE website (registration via the Candidate website)
- 3. Add, edit or delete the candidate's accommodations requests, if needed.

Click the **Manage Accommodations** link under the Basic Information heading. The Manage Accommodations page is displayed.

- 4. In the **Authorization Information** area, edit fields as needed.
  - **Center:** Displays the Pearson Professional Center at which the candidate has chosen to take the exam, if the exam has been scheduled. This field cannot be edited.
  - ATT Start and ATT End: Display the dates between which the candidate must take the exam. These dates are based on settings in your jurisdiction's profile. The ATT Start date is derived by adding the number of days in your profile's Delay in ATT Dates (in Days) field (if specified) to the ATT Sent date. The ATT End date is then derived by adding the number of days in your profile's Days ATT is Valid field to the ATT Start date. These fields cannot be edited.
  - **Status:** See the next step for more information.
  - **Appt:** Displays the date and time of the exam appointment (for example, Mar 12 at 6:45 AM) if the exam has been scheduled or taken.
  - **MB ID:** Displays the ID assigned by your Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body, if applicable. (Some members assign their own internal IDs to candidates.)



Candidates answer the following three questions when they register. However, when a candidate's record is imported into the Pearson VUE database, the software checks if the candidate has an existing record showing he or she has previously taken the exam. If so, the answers to these questions will be automatically changed using the information in the database.

- **Taken NCLEX:** Displays the candidate's answer to the question, "Have you ever taken an NCLEX exam?" on the registration form.
- For Same License: Displays the candidate's answer to the question, "Have you ever taken an NCLEX exam to qualify for the same license?" on the registration form.
- For Different License: Displays the candidate's answer to the question, "Have you ever taken an NCLEX exam to qualify for a different license?" on the registration form.
- **Taken Pre 1994:** Displays whether or not the candidate has taken any NCLEX exams before January 1, 1994. This information can be entered into the candidate record on the Profile page.

5. Change the candidate's **status** if needed, or **print** a **Candidate Report** if the candidate has taken the exam.

If needed, select a new status for the candidate from the **Status** field (in the Authorization Information section). This field is displayed to users who have been assigned the **RegStatus** (may edit registration status) permission, which allows users to edit candidate's eligibility status. Refer to the following table.

Current Status	Can change to
New	Awaiting Eligibility Eligible Denied
Awaiting Eligibility	Eligible Denied
Eligible	Awaiting Eligibility
Result Available	Closed
Exam Not Taken	Closed
On Hold	None
Denied	Closed
Closed	None
Expired	None

If the candidate's status is Result Available, print a candidate report for the candidate by clicking the **Generate Candidate Report** link. This link is displayed to users who are assigned the **RegStatus** (may edit registration status) permission.

- 6. Click the links in the **Related Information** area to display other candidate information, as needed.
  - **Exam History:** Displays information about all NCLEX exams for which the candidate has registered and taken.
  - **ID Files:** Displays identification for the candidate (photo and signature).
  - **Audit Trail:** Displays all changes made to the candidate's record and by whom they were made.
  - **Incidents:** If one or more incidents is associated with the candidate's registration, an Incidents link is displayed, along with the number of associated incidents. (The words "No Incidents" appear if there are no associated incidents.) Click the link to display the Incident Details page, listing the incident(s) that occurred for the candidate registration.
- 7. Click the **Save** button to save your changes.

## Viewing a candidate's exam history

Use the **Exam History** link to view information about exams for which the candidate is currently or has previously registered.



The candidate's full exam history for the NCLEX is displayed (except for pre-1994 data). Only the board where the candidate applied for licensure can see the accommodations and pass/fail information. This provides more information about why Pearson denoted the candidate as a repeat test taker.

1. At the bottom of the **Candidate Details** or **Registration Details** page, click the **Exam History** link.

The Exam History page is displayed. This page displays a status for all of a candidate's current and previous registrations. If the candidate previously took an exam or has an exam scheduled, the appointment date, testing center and result are listed. The exam type and information about granted accommodations are shown for all registrations, along with the status.

nber Bo	ard NCLEX <sup>(</sup>	<sup>®</sup> Candidat	tes			U	NCLEX® Admin	nistratior
	Hom Com Loge	ne taot Pearson V out You must	Candio /UE Flowd Report Batch	late Search art S Processing both First N	i Requests <u>Seat Av</u> Incidents Lists Users Profile Jame and Last Name fi	vailability Se elds OR SSN	earch	ch to succe
First N	lame:		Last Na	ame:		SSN:		Search
			Exam H	istory:	NCLEX Cana	da		
Appt	Exam	Center	Status	Result	Granted Accommodations	Member E	Board	
	NCLEX-RN- 1: FRC					College of Manitoba(8	Registered Nurses	of
08-29- 2014	NCLEX-RN : ENU	200080293	Delivery Successful	Fail		Minnesota	Board of Nursing(1	0)
03-06- 2014	NCLEX-RN: ENU	61030	Taken			Wisconsin Profession	Department of Safe al Services(50)	ty &
				Return to F	Previous Page			
	Copyrig	ght © 1996-20 affiliate(s).	14 Pearson Ed All rights reser	ucation, Ind ved.	. or its	NCSB ational Council oj	S N NCLEX® E: f State Boards of Nursing	aminatio



If a candidate was designated as a pre-1994 repeater (i.e., if the candidate took an exam before January 1, 1994 as designated on the Candidate Details page), their exam history will always display an exam with an appointment date of 12-31-1993. For pre-1994 exams, the Exam column indicates what exam was taken and the Status column indicates that the exam was delivered successfully. The Result column displays "Exam complete. Score unavailable."

The status depends on where the registration is in the exam process:

- If the registration is in a final state, the status can be one of the following: *Canceled*, *Result Voided by Client*, *Delivery Successful*, *Client Denied Eligibility*, *Delivery Failed*, or *No Show*.
- If the registration is not in a final state, the status can be one of the following: *New, Eligibility Pending, Approved for Scheduling, Appointment Scheduled,* or *Ready for Delivery.*



If a candidate previously registered under another jurisdiction, information about the registration is displayed only if the candidate was denied.

2. Click the Return to Previous Page link.

You return to the Candidate Details or Registration Details page.

## Viewing a candidate's name changes

Use the **Name History** link to view name changes recorded for the candidate. For example, you might want to examine a candidate's name history if the candidate is retaking an exam using a different name.

1. At the bottom of the **Candidate Details** page, click the **Name History** link.

The Name History page is displayed. All name changes for the candidate are displayed, including those made by other Boards of Nursing/Regulatory Bodies.

Member Board NCLEX® Candi	dates		NCLEX® Admin	istration
<u>Home</u> <u>Contact Pearson VUE</u> <u>Loqout</u>	Candidate Search Reques Flowchart Inciden Reports Lists Batch Processing Users	ts <u>Profile</u> Is <u>Seat Availability Searc</u>	<u>ch</u>	
You must ent	er data in both First Name and	d Last Name fields OR SSN	I field for QUICK searc	to succeed
First Name:	Last Name:	S	SN:	Sealch
Current: Beverly A	Name History: Bev	erly A Anderberg		
Date Changed Previous	5 Name (First Middle Last	1		
05/09/14 03:18 PM Beverly A	A Smith			
	Return to Cand	idate Details		
PEARSON VUE Copyright © 19 its affilia	96-2014 Pearson Education, I te(s). All rights reserved.	nc. or	BN NCLEX® Ex	aminations

2. Click the Return to Candidate Details link.

You return to the Candidate Details page.
#### Viewing a candidate's address changes

Use the **Contact History** link to view address changes recorded for the candidate. For example, you might examine a candidate's address history for identification purposes.

# 1. At the bottom of the **Candidate Details** page, click the **Contact History** link.

The Contact History page is displayed. All address changes for the candidate are displayed, including those made by other Boards of Nursing/Regulatory Bodies.

Member Board NCLE	® Candio	lates				NCLEX® Admir	histration
Home Contact Pea Logout	rson VUE	Candidate Search Flowchart Reports Batch Processing	Requests Incidents Lists Users	<u>Profile</u> Seat Availat	<u>ility Search</u>	1	
Yo	u must ente	er data in both First	Name and L	ast Name fiel	ds OR SSN fie	ald for QUICK searc	h to succeed.
First Na	mé:	Li	ist Name i	5	SSN		Sealor
	C	ontact Histo	ry: Beve	rly A And	lerberg		
Current:	26A Eaton Lot 22 London GI 77899878 1011@bet	Square BR 7 weenincomplete.co	m				
Date Changed	Previous	Address, Phone	<u>, EMail</u>				
05/09/14 03:27 PM	38 Shabby Lot 22 London GI 77899878 1011@bet	/ Abby 3R 7 weenincomplete.co	m				
		Return	n to Candida	<u>te Details</u>			
PEARSON Copy	right © 19 its affilia	96-2014 Pearson Ed te(s). All rights rese	lucation, Inc. rved.	or <b>•••</b> *	NCSE National Council o	3 N NCLEX® Ex f State Boards of Nursing	aminations

2. Click the Return to Candidate Details link.

You return to the Candidate Details page.

### Viewing a candidate's identification information

When candidates arrive at a testing center, they are photographed and must provide a digital signature and a palm vein scan. Use the ID Files link to view this information.

1. At the bottom of the **Registration Details** page, click the **ID Files** link.

The Identification page is displayed. This page displays the photo and signature that were collected at the time of the exam.



#### 2. Click the Return to Registration Details link.

You return to the Registration Details page.

Identifies the date on which the identification data was collected, the testing center's code and the type of exam the candidate took.

Fingerprints are no longer collected, so this screen will say "No fingerprint file available".

### Viewing registration events

When a registration's status is changed, the date and time and the name of the user who made the change are recorded. Use the **Audit Trail** link to view information about all changes that have been made to a candidate's registration, including eligibility denials.

1. At the bottom of the **Registration Details** page, click the **Audit Trail** link.

iber Board NCL	EX® Candid	ates			NCLEX® Administratio
<u>Home</u> <u>Contact F</u> <u>Loqout</u>	Pearson VUE	Candidate Se Flowchart Reports Batch Proces	arch Requests Incidents Lists sing Users	<u>Profile</u> Seat Availability Sear	<u>ch</u>
	You must ente	r data in both i	First Name and L	ast Name fields OR SSN	I field for QUICK search to succe
First	Name:		Last Name:	S	SN: Searc
		Reg	istration A	udit Trail	
Candidate Name: Member Board:	John Doe Minnesota E	Exam: loard of Nursin	NCLEX-PN g		
Date/Time Central Time Zone	User Name		Descr	iption	Details
07/08/13 02:47 PM	Mike MacIsaa	ic	Regist	ation created	
07/08/13 02:47 PM	VUE Automat	ed User	Payme	nt Receipt	Email Complete
07/08/13 02:48 PM	Rick Olson		Regist	ation status changed	Eligibility Approved
07/08/13 02:49 PM	Mike MacIsaa	ic	Exam	appointment scheduled	Jul 9 at 6:00 AM at Site ID 61030
07/09/13 06:49 AM	VUE Automat Automated U	ed User VUE ser	Author sent	ization/eligibility letter	EMail Sent
07/09/13 06:49 AM	VUE Automat Automated U	ed User VUE ser	Confin	nation letter sent	EMail Sent
07/10/13 12:58 PM	Rick Olson	12.80x	Exam hold	result released from	
		Re	turn to Registrat	on Details	
	opyright © 199 its affiliat	6-2014 Pearso e(s). All rights	n Education, Inc. reserved.	or	B N NCLEX® Examinatio

The Registration Audit Trail page is displayed, as shown below.

The Registration Audit Trail page lists all events related to the candidate's registration, including Registration, Accommodations, Eligibility, Scheduling Details and Results. Name and address changes are not included on this page.

• The **User Name** column displays the username of the person who made the change, and in parentheses, indicates if it was an NCLEX Candidate Services person or an NCLEX Administration website user.



The User Name is listed only if applicable. Some of the events are handled automatically by the system, so there isn't a specific person associated with the event. • The **Description** column provides information about the event. Any additional information is displayed in the **Details** column.



The description "Result acknowledged" indicates that the registration was closed via the website.

- The **Details** column provides information about the action performed.
- 2. Click the Return to Registration Details link.

You return to the Registration Details page.

# Candidate Accommodations

This chapter covers the following topics:

- Accommodations process
- Supported accommodations
- Working with accommodations
- Adding accommodations requests
- Revoking accommodations
- Viewing or editing the list of readers (assistive personnel)

### Accommodations process

This section describes the steps involved in the accommodations process and the tasks Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body users, NCSBN users and Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinators perform.



**It's important** to enter the accommodations requests BEFORE a candidate's status is set to Eligible, whenever possible. When a status is set to Eligible, an ATT email is automatically generated and sent to the candidate. However, if the record has any pending accommodations requests, an ATT email will not be sent until those requests are resolved. Although the system allows accommodations to be entered after a candidate has been made eligible, this may require unscheduling a candidate's exam appointment. It also means the candidate will receive multiple ATT emails, which can be confusing.

# \* A candidate contacts a Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body to request accommodations.

Candidates who require special accommodations register for the NCLEX exam using standard procedures, but also submit an accommodations request in writing to the Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body in the jurisdiction in which they are seeking licensure/registration. Once the registration is entered in the system, the registration appears on the NCLEX Administration website and is assigned the New Registration status.

# \* The Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body adds the accommodations request to the candidate's registration.

When the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body receives a candidate's accommodations request, use the NCLEX Administration website to add the request(s) to the candidate's registration. After candidate registrations are processed, they are displayed on the NCLEX Administration website and accommodations requests can then be entered. Select the accommodation type, choose options or provide additional information (if required) and enter comments or recommendations to NCSBN.

# \* The Accommodation Place Holder accommodation is revoked.

You MUST revoke this accommodation after entering a candidate's accommodations request(s). (If the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body doesn't revoke it, the ATT email will not be sent to the candidate.)

# \* The Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body marks the candidate eligible.

The registration can be marked eligible any time after the accommodations request is added. The candidate will not receive his or her ATT email (and cannot schedule an appointment) until all pending accommodations requests have been granted by NCSBN in the NCLEX Administration website.

#### \* An NCSBN user reviews the request.

Immediately after an accommodations request is saved, NCSBN can review the request on the NCLEX Administration website, including the Board of Nursing's/Regulatory Body's recommendations and comments. NCSBN may work with the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body to reach a mutually agreeable decision regarding the request.

NCSBN then either:

- **Grants** the request in the NCLEX Administration website.
- **Denies** the request: If NCSBN determines the accommodations request should not be granted, they will contact the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body to deny the request in the website. It is the Board of Nursing's/Regulatory Body's responsibility to inform the candidate that his or her accommodations request has been denied. Information about which accommodations have been granted or denied does not appear in the candidate's ATT email.
- **Replaces** the accommodation: If a Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body and NCSBN determine that an alternate accommodation should be granted rather than the one originally requested, the original request must be revoked and a new request should be entered. It is the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body's responsibility to inform the candidate that his or her accommodations request has been replaced.

# \* The ATT (Authorization to Test) email is sent to the candidate.

Once NCSBN has granted all accommodations requests for a particular registration and the registration is marked eligible, the ATT email is generated and sent. (If a registration has pending accommodations requests, the ATT email cannot be sent and the exam cannot be scheduled.) The ATT email specifies that candidates with granted accommodations must schedule an appointment by calling the Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinator at NCLEX Candidate Services. (The candidate will automatically be prevented from scheduling via the NCLEX Candidate website.)

# \* The candidate schedules an appointment with the Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinator.

The Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinator schedules appointments for all NCLEX registrations that have accommodations. The coordinator is trained to handle special condition testing situations including scheduling multiple-day appointments. If necessary, he or she also works with the testing center the candidate chooses to ensure that the accommodation is set up properly before the candidate arrives for the exam.

Some accommodations require special personnel to assist the candidate during exam delivery. For example, sight-impaired candidates may require a reader to assist them during the exam. Pearson VUE is responsible for scheduling personnel according to guidelines provided by Boards of Nursing/Regulatory Bodies and NCSBN. A Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinator sends assistive personnel a packet of pertinent information, including the Assistive Personnel Agreement and a confirmation email.

#### \* The candidate takes the NCLEX exam with accommodations.

The test administrator checks the center's exam schedule in the Pearson VUE Testing System to find out which candidates have approved accommodations. Accommodations for extra time and adjustable font size and contrast are built into the exam delivery software, and the administrator doesn't need to intervene. The Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinator will have already informed the administrator about any nonstandard accommodation and provided instructions if necessary. If an assistive person was approved for the candidate, the test administrator follows a standard procedure for checking in the person.

When the test administrator starts the exam for the candidate, the software displays a list of the accommodations for which the candidate has been approved, as an additional reminder.



Test administrators are not permitted to rescind or change accommodations for NCLEX exams at the testing center.

### Special cases

This section describes how special accommodations cases are handled.



If there are accommodations changes after an appointment has been scheduled, the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body must contact NCSBN, who will contact the Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinator. This is because the coordinator may have already made arrangements for a granted accommodation or may need to make arrangements for a new or changed accommodation.

- A candidate contacts a Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body and says he or she no longer requires a granted accommodation, or the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body decides that a granted accommodation should be denied instead.
  - If an appointment has not been scheduled, the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body or an NCSBN user can revoke the accommodation on the NCLEX Administration website (regardless of whether or not the request has already been granted).
  - If an appointment has already been scheduled, the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body must contact NCSBN, who must ask the Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinator to revoke the accommodation in the system. If the accommodation extended the candidate's testing time, the appointment reverts to a normal exam time.
- A candidate requests an accommodation or accommodation change after being made eligible, or the Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body decides that a denied accommodation should be granted instead.

The Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body or NCSBN may need to add an accommodations request after the ATT email has been sent. For example, a candidate may request an accommodation after the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body has already made him or her eligible.

- If the ATT email has been sent but the appointment has not yet been scheduled, you can enter the request for the new accommodation, which automatically prevents the candidate from scheduling an appointment.
- If the candidate has already scheduled the exam, the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body cannot add or change accommodations via the NCLEX Administration website. The Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body must contact NCSBN, who contacts the Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinator to unschedule the appointment. (Pearson VUE will send an email to the candidate, notifying him or her that the appointment has been unscheduled.) The Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body can then enter the new accommodations request and NCSBN can grant the request in the website. Pearson VUE sends a new ATT email to the candidate, and the candidate can then reschedule his or her appointment.

In both of the above cases, eligibility dates are adjusted in the updated ATT email so that the candidate receives the same amount of time as in the original ATT email.

### Batch Processing Jurisin files

When a Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body uses batch processing (jurisin files), accommodations are handled in a slightly different way than when they do not use batch processing. This section describes the steps involved in the accommodations process for batch processing and the tasks Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body users, NCSBN users and Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinators perform.

#### Your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body sets the Special Conditions flag in the jurisin.dat file to True.

Setting this flag in the jurisin file automatically sets the accommodations placeholder named **Accommodation Place Holder**. (If you don't do this and then set a registration to Eligible, the ATT email will be sent without the accommodations information as noted above once the candidate registers with Pearson VUE for the NCLEX.)

#### Important points about accommodations

# \* How does the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body know when NCSBN has granted or denied a request?

As stated in the NCSBN's NCLEX® Administration Manual, NCSBN may work with Boards of Nursing/Regulatory Bodies to make accommodations decisions. Use one of these methods to check that accommodations have been resolved and an ATT email has been sent to a candidate:

- Search for the candidate's record on the NCLEX Administration website. (Regulatory Bodies do not require SSN.) When the record is found, click the candidate's exam type in the **Exam** column to display the Registration Details page. The status of each requested accommodation is shown in the Basic Information section of the page. If there are dates entered in the **ATT Start** and **ATT End** fields (in the Authorization Information section), then an ATT email has been sent to the candidate.
- If the candidate has already been made Eligible, click the **Flowchart** link and click the **Eligible** status on the diagram. In the list of candidates that appears, the ATT Sent column lists the date on which the ATT email was sent to the candidate, and the Notes column indicates whether or not all accommodations have been resolved for a registration.

# \* How does a candidate know about the status of his or her accommodations requests?

The Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body is responsible for informing candidates of the status of their accommodations requests. This includes informing them when requests are denied, revoked or replaced.

If a candidate calls to check on an accommodation's status, locate the record on the NCLEX Administration website by either searching for the candidate or clicking the appropriate registration status on the Flowchart page and then clicking the candidate's exam type in the **Exam** column. The Registration Details page displays the current status of all accommodation requests in the Basic Information section as noted above.

#### \* When does Pearson VUE send candidates the ATT emails?

ATT emails are automatically sent to candidates when BOTH of the following conditions are true:

• The candidate's registration status is set to Eligible.

#### AND

 The candidate's registration contains no accommodations requests OR all accommodations requests have been resolved (either granted or denied in the website) by NCSBN.

This means that if a candidate's status is set to Eligible before entering accommodations requests, the candidate will receive one ATT email after eligibility is granted and another ATT email after NCSBN resolves the accommodations requests. To avoid this, enter accommodations information before granting eligibility whenever possible; the candidate will then receive only one ATT email, after NCSBN resolves the requests.

#### What if a Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body or a candidate wants to make changes to accommodations after the candidate has received an ATT email?

The process depends on the kind of a change that is required and whether or not the candidate has already scheduled an exam appointment.

# What to tell candidates that have received multiple ATT emails?

If a candidate calls and says he or she has received multiple ATT emails, tell the candidate to always use the email received most recently.

# \* How can candidates with accommodations schedule exam appointments?

Like other candidates, candidates who have been granted accommodations can schedule exam appointments only after receiving an ATT email. However, candidates with accommodations can schedule *only* by calling NCLEX Candidate Services and asking to speak with the Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinator. Candidates with accommodations must also reschedule or unschedule appointments through the Coordinator.

Note that a candidate cannot schedule an exam appointment if his or her registration has unresolved accommodations requests *even if he or she has already received an ATT email.* If a request is added after making a candidate eligible, and the candidate has already received an ATT email, he or she will not be able to schedule an appointment until NCSBN grants or denies the new request in the website.

# Can a candidate change his or her mind about accommodations after arriving at the testing center?

Candidates who have been granted accommodations are required to test with those accommodations, unless they have the accommodations revoked in advance. The test administrator and the staff at NCLEX Candidate Services cannot revoke or change accommodations requests without approval from NCSBN. The candidate can either test with the accommodations or choose not to test (and then register and repay the examination fee).

Likewise, a candidate cannot arrive at the testing center and expect to receive accommodations that were not requested and granted in advance. The candidate can either test without the accommodations or choose not to test (and then register and repay the examination fee).

#### What happens if a candidate arrives for an exam and the accommodations are not prepared?

If a candidate arrives at a testing center and the accommodations are not ready or cannot be provided, the test administrator will contact the Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinator to verify that the accommodations were requested and granted. The coordinator will work with the testing center to try to arrange the accommodations; if arrangements cannot be made within 30 minutes, the candidate can reschedule the exam appointment with the Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinator at no additional cost. An Incident Report will be filed to document why the accommodations were not provided to the candidate.

### Supported accommodations

NCLEX candidates can request and be granted the accommodations listed in this section.



Temporary Test Centers may not be able to accommodate all accommodations in the list.

### Additional testing time

The standard NCLEX-RN exam involves six hours of testing time, while the standard NCLEX-PN exam involves five hours. In both exams, candidates are granted two scheduled breaks that are built into the exam software: an optional break two hours after the exam begins and an optional break 3.5 hours after the exam begins. In addition, candidates can take an unlimited number of unscheduled breaks. For each of these, the amount of break time that is taken is subtracted from the total available testing time. In other words, for every minute of break time a candidate takes, he or she loses that amount of testing time.

The exam time and break times are calculated from the time at which the candidate is seated for the exam and the test administrator launches the exam on the candidate's workstation. Candidates must leave the testing room for all breaks. After a break, the administrator must escort each candidate to his or her workstation and resume the exam.

Scheduled and unscheduled breaks differ as described below.

- Scheduled breaks are programmed in the system so that the candidate is offered a break at a time predetermined by NCSBN. When the time for a break arrives, a message appears on the candidate's computer screen. The candidate clicks **Yes** to take the break or **No** to decline the break and continue with the exam. If the candidate clicks **Yes**, the exam is put into break mode until the administrator resumes it for the candidate. The exam clock is NOT stopped during these breaks.
- Unscheduled breaks are not automatic. If a candidate wants to take a break at an unscheduled time, he or she raises a hand to get the administrator's permission to leave. The exam is put into break mode until the administrator resumes it for the candidate. The exam clock is NOT stopped during these breaks.

The following table lists the accommodations that give candidates additional exam time. Note that candidates can also take an unlimited number of unscheduled breaks in addition to the scheduled breaks that are listed.

Accommodation	Details
Extra Time - 2 hours	A RN candidate will be given a total of 8 hours to complete the exam over 1 day.
	A PN candidate will be given a total of 7 hours to complete the exam over 1 day.
	For both RN and PN exams, scheduled, optional breaks will be offered after 2hrs, 4hrs, and 6hrs of exam time.
Extra Time - 3 hours	A RN candidate will be given a total of 9 hrs to complete the exam over 1 day. For the RN exam, scheduled, optional breaks will be offered after 2, 4, 6 and 8 hours of exam time.
	A PN candidate will be given a total of 8 hrs to complete the exam over 1 day. For the PN exam, scheduled, optional breaks will be offered after 2, 4 and 6 hours of exam time.
Extra Time - Double Time 2 Days	A RN candidate is allotted 12 hours over 2 days, with 6 hours of exam time on each day.
	A PN candidate is allotted 10 hours over 2 days, with 5 hours of exam time on each day.
	For both RN and PN exams, scheduled, optional breaks will be offered after 2 hours and 3.5 hours of exam time on each day.
Extra Time - Other	Candidate is given a custom amount of extra testing time along with optional breaks scheduled as indicated by testing time.
	No more than nine hours of testing time is allowed per day. The Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body must specify, in minutes, the additional time being requested (e.g., an additional one hour of possible testing time is indicated in the NCLEX Administration website as 60; this is the minimum additional time permitted).

Accommodation	Details
Multi Day Appt - Double Time	Candidate is given 2 days to complete the exam along with optional breaks scheduled as indicated by testing time.
	The candidate is scheduled for double time on 2 consecutive days. The actual testing procedure allows the exam to be stopped on the first day, and then resumed on the second day where the candidate left off in the exam.

### Special equipment or assistance

The accommodations options that do not involve extra testing time are listed below.

Accommodation	Details
Aid	Candidate is permitted to bring and use an aid specified by the Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body. The candidate provides the aid.
Adjustable Font Size	The exam automatically displays in a larger font size. The candidate may need to scroll (using arrow keys) within the test question.
Adjustable Contrast	The candidate can change the text and background colors so that exam items display in a higher or lower contrast.
Equipment	Candidate is permitted to use specified equipment during the exam. The testing center provides the equipment. Options available are: <i>adjustable height table</i> , <i>adjustable swivel arm for the keyboard</i> , <i>anti-glare overlay for the monitor, color</i> <i>overlay for the monitor, enlarged keyboard</i> , or <i>other</i> . The Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body must specify the type of equipment
Other	A non-standard accommodation is requested.
	The Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body must provide details in the Comments field.
Screen Magnifier	The candidate can use a device to magnify the screen.

Accommodation	Details
Separate Room	The exam must be delivered in a private testing environment.*
Separate Room &	A reader is approved to assist the candidate.
Reader	The exam must be delivered in a private testing environment.*
Separate Room & Recorder	A recorder is approved to assist the candidate. If a reader has been approved, this person will also serve as the recorder.
	The exam must be delivered in a private testing environment.*
Separate Room & Sign Lang Interp	A sign language interpreter is approved to assist the candidate in communicating with the test administrator.
	The exam must be delivered in a private testing environment.*
Accommodation Place Holder	This selection to be used only by batch processing Boards.

\*The candidate must either take the exam in a separate room or must be the only person taking an exam in the main testing room.

### Working with accommodations

Accommodations are processed on an individual candidate basis, by displaying a candidate's Registration Details page and clicking the **Manage Accommodations** link, as described below. The Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body can:

- view accommodations requests that were previously added, along with any comments entered for them.
- **• display**, **enter** and **edit diagnosis** information for the candidate.
- add accommodations requests, selecting from a comprehensive list of supported accommodations, entering details about the request if needed, and entering recommendations to NCSBN about whether the accommodation should be granted or denied.



To add accommodations requests, the Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body must be assigned the **RegStatus** (may edit registration status) permission.

#### add comments.

#### revoke accommodations.



Accommodations requests cannot be edited. If required to make changes to a request, revoke it and add a new one.

1. Display the **Registration Details** page for a selected candidate.

The page can be opened in one of two ways:

- Click **Candidate Search** on the blue navigation bar, search for a candidate, and then click the candidate's exam type link in the **Exam** column on the Search Results page.
- Click **Flowchart** on the blue navigation bar, select a status on the Flowchart page, and then click the candidate's exam type link in the **Exam** column on the status page displayed.

The Registration Details page is displayed. Accommodations-related fields are described below.



Under the **Basic Information** heading, accommodations information is displayed, including:

- overall accommodations status for the candidate. The accommodations status can be **None** (when there are no requests), **Pending** (when one or more requests are pending review by NCSBN), or **Resolved** (when all requests have been granted or denied in the website).
- Specific accommodations requests and their statuses.
   A request's status can be Open, Granted, Denied or Revoked.

#### 2. Click the Manage Accommodations link.

The Manage Accommodations page is displayed (as shown below), listing any accommodations that have already been selected for the candidate, along with their statuses. The words "No Accommodations Found" are displayed if there are no accommodations associated with this registration.

	Member Board NCLEX® Candidates NCLEX® Administration
	Home Contact Pearson VUE         Candidate Search Flowchart         Requests Incidents         Profile           Logout         Reports         Lists           Batch Processing         Users
	You must enter data in both First Name and Last Name fields OR SSN field for QUICK search to succeed.
	First Name: Last Name: SSN: Search
	Manage Accommodations
	Name: John Doe Candidate ID: 20008285 Exam: NCLEX_Breaks Status: New
Accommodations	Accommodation Status
previously added for the candidate	Extra Time Revoked [This accommodation was revoked because] The candidate requested that the accommodation be revoked. (R. Olson) Days)
	Comments R. Olson: Candidate does not need extra time. (optional) Add:
Comments previously added, ordered chronologically	Other (Insulin Pump)     Select status:     If you select the Revoke status, you must select a reason from this list:
Name of user who	Comments R. Olson: Candidate needs to bring insuin pump J. Jones: Pump is for emergency use only? P. Olson: Yes, it's unlikely sha will need to use it
entered the comment (first initial, last name)	(optional) Add:
Add comments in	Add Accommodation Display Diagnosis Make Changes
these fields.	Return to Registration Details
	NCE         Copyright © 1996-2014 Pearson Education, Inc. or its affiliate(s). All rights reserved.         NCSBN NCLEX® Examinations National Council of State Boards of Nursing

- Click the **Add Accommodation** link to add accommodations requests and enter or edit the candidate's diagnosis.
- Click the **Display Diagnosis** link to view the candidate's diagnosis.



Do not use this field. NCSBN has asked that this field be removed. Until the field can be removed, please do not use this field. • To **add comments** to an accommodation request, click the **Comments** field and type. There is no limit to the number of characters in a comment.

Comments provide a way to view and add information to accommodations requests. Boards of Nursing/Regulatory Bodies and NCSBN users can add multiple comments to an accommodation, providing information or clarification as needed. The Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body can add comments to requests when entering the requests or at any time from the Manage Accommodations page.



Once saved, comments cannot be edited or deleted. Comments remain listed for an accommodation, regardless of any change in status.

3. After changes are made, click the **Make Changes** button at the bottom of the page.

A message confirms that the changes were saved.

4. Click **Return to Registration Details** to return to the Registration Details page.

## Adding accommodations requests



Whenever possible, add accommodations requests to a candidate's registration BEFORE making candidates eligible. Otherwise, it may be necessary to unschedule a candidate's appointment. In addition, the candidate will receive multiple ATT emails.

1. On the Registration Details page, click the **Manage Accommodations** link.

The Manage Accommodations page is displayed.

2. Click the Add Accommodations link.



The NCLEX Testing - Diagnosis page is displayed, where the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body can add or edit diagnosis information for the candidate. Please do not use the Diagnosis page. NCSBN has requested to remove this field.

3. Complete or edit the diagnosis fields and click the **Save Diagnosis** button.

NCI EX® Administration Member Board NCLEX® Candidates Candidate Search Requests Profile Flowchart Incidents Seat Availability Search Contact Pearson VUE Batch Processing You must enter data in both First Name and Last Name fields OR SSN field for QUICK search to succeed. First Name: Last Name: SSN: Search Add Accommodations: Beverly Anderberg Accommodation <u>Accommodation Place Holder</u> Require Administrative Assisitant Conditions: The Member Board or National Council should deny this request after the actual accommodation request is created. <u>Adjustable Contrast</u> The display of the exam can be changed by the candidate to either high contrast or low contrast. Conditions: The display of the contrast on the monitor can be adjusted so that the exam questions are displayed in a higher or lower contrast via different colors for text and background. <u>Adjustable Font Size</u> The candidate can adjust the size of the text displayed on the screen. If a large font is selected the candidate may need to scroll within the test question. Conditions: The candidate can adjust the size of the text displayed on the screen. If a large font is selected the candidate may need to scroll (using arrow keys) within the test question. <u>Aid</u> Candidate is permitted to bring and use a particular aid. The candidate provides the aid. Conditions: Candidate is permitted to bring an aid specified by the Board of Nursing and use the aid during the exam. The candidate provides the aid. Lists all supported accommodations types, Equipment Specific equipment that is provided by the testing center is permitted to assist the candidate. Conditions: Candidate is permitted to use specified equipment during the exam. The Board of Nursing must specify the type of equipment. The testing center provides the equipment. including any that may have already been Extra Time - 2 Hours 8 hrs total testing time. Breaks: 10 min after 2 hrs (mandatory), 1 hr. after 4 hrs (optional)KL. Conditions: A RN candidate will be given a total of 8 hrs to complete the exam over 1 day. A PN candidate will be given a total of 7 hrs to complete the exam over 1 day. Scheduled, optional breaks will be offered after 2hrs, 4hrs, and 6hrs of requested for this exam time. Extra Time - 3 Hours Increases the amount of time for completing exam by 3 hours.KL Conditions: A RN exam will be 9hrs, a PN exam 8hrs. For the RN exam, scheduled, optional breaks will be offered after 2hrs, 4hrs, 6hrs, and 8hrs of exam time. For the PN exam, scheduled, optional breaks will be offered after 2hrs, 4hrs, and 6hrs of exam time. Extra Time - Double Time 2 Days 12 hrs total testing time. Breaks: 10 min after 2 hrs each day (mandatory), 10 min after 3.5 hrs each day (optional). Testing completes after 5 hrs each day.KL Conditions: A RN candidate is allotted 12hrs over 2 days, 6hrs of exam time on each day. A PN candidate is allotted 10hrs over 2 days, 5hrs of exam time on each day. Scheduled, optional breaks will be offered after 2hrs and 3.5 hours of exam time on each day. Candidate is given Candidate is given a custom amount of extra testing time. Conditions: The Candidate is approved for a custom amount of extra testing time. The administrator must manually extend the exam time to reflect the additional time that the candidate has been approved for. No more than 9 hours of testing time is allowed per day. Other Non-standard accommodation is requested. Details must be provided in the description. Conditions: The Board of Nursing must provide details in comments box Screen Magnifier The candidate can use a device to magnify the screen Conditions: A screen magnifier can be provided by the test center to magnify the image on the monitor. The exam must be delivered in a private testing environment Separate Room The exam must be delivered in a private room. The Pearson Professional Centers refer to this as the Accommodations Room. Conditions: The exam must be delivered in a private testing environment. Separate Room & Reader A reader may assist the candidate. The exam must be delivered in a private room. The Pearson Professional Centers refer to this as the Accommodations Room. Conditions: A reader is approved to assist the candidate. The exam must be delivered in a private testing environment. Separate Room & Recorder A recorder may assist the candidate. The exam must be delivered in a private room. The Pearson Professional Centers refer to this as the Accommodations Room. Conditions: A recorder is approved to assist the candidate. The exam must be delivered in a private testing environment. Separate Room & Sign Lang Interp A sign language interpreter may assist the candidate with communicating with the Test Administrator (TA). The exam must be delivered in a private room. The Pearson Professional Centers refer to this as the Accommodations Room. Conditions: A sign language interpreter is approved to assist the candidate in communicating with the Test Adminis-trator The exam must be delivered in a private testing environment. Next Step >> Return to Previous Page Copyright © 1996-2014 Pearson Education, Inc. or its affiliate(s). All rights reserved. NUE

registration

4. Check the boxes corresponding to the accommodations the candidate is requesting.

If the candidate is requesting an accommodation that is not listed, check the **Other** box. In the next step, you'll be prompted to type a description of the accommodation in the Comments field.

5. Click the **Next Step** button.

A page similar to the one shown below is displayed. A section is provided for each accommodation. (If the accommodation requires additional clarification, a field or question related to the accommodation is displayed.) Use the **Comments** field to enter comments or recommendations for the request.

	Member Roard NCI EX® Candidates	NCLEX® Administration
	Home Candidate Search Requests Profile Contact Pearson VUE Flowchart Incidents Seat Availability Search Logout Reports Lists Batch Processing Users	ch field for OUICK search to succeed.
	First Name: SS	SN: Search
First accommodation requested	Add Accommodations: Beverly Anderb	erg
One or more questions or <u>fields</u> may require additional information about the request.	Comments:	
Second accommodation requested	NCLEX Testing - Separate Room Comments:	
	Return to Previous Page PEARSON Copyright © 1996-2014 its affiliate(s). All rights reserved. NCC S National Count	BN NCLEX <sup>®</sup> Examinations

Enter comments or recommendations to NCSBN for the accommodation.



Any accommodations request that conflicts with a previously selected request will automatically display an error message. For example, the system will not allow a request for Extra Tim - 3 hours if a request for Extra Time - 4 hours has already been selected. To replace an accommodation request, the original request must be revoked and a new request entered.

- 6. Complete any fields or questions that appear about the accommodation. In the **Comments** field, provide required details and notes about each accommodation.
- 7. Click the Add Accommodations button.

A message at the top of the page confirms that the accommodations request(s) was added.

After clicking **Add Accommodations**, the request is sent to NCSBN for approval or denial. If needed, proceed to the next step and enter additional accommodations requests before making the candidate eligible, so that NCSBN receives all requests for this candidate before the ATT email is generated.

8. Add other accommodations, if needed.

To attach another accommodation to the registration, repeat steps 4 through 7.

9. Click the **Return to Manage Accommodations** link at the bottom of the page.

The Manage Accommodations page is displayed. The accommodation(s) just added are shown, with a status of Open.

### **Revoking accommodations**

Occasionally, the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body may need to revoke a granted accommodation or an accommodations request. For example, a candidate may decide to change a request, in which case the original request must be revoked and a new request must be added.

The Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body cannot use the NCLEX Administration website to revoke granted accommodations if the candidate has already scheduled an appointment. The Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body will need to contact NCSBN, who will ask the Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinator to revoke the accommodation. This is so the Coordinator is aware of any arrangements that he or she may need to cancel (such as assistive personnel or special equipment).

After an accommodation has been revoked, the status cannot be changed. A new accommodation request must be entered.

1. On the Registration Details page, click the **Manage Accommodations** link.

The Manage Accommodations page is displayed.

2. Choose **Revoked** in the **Select Status** field for the accommodation that needs to be revoked.

	NCLEX® Administration
	Home Candidate Search Requests Profile Contact Pearson VUE Flowchart Incidents Sear Availability Search Logout Batch Processing Users
	You must enter data in both First Name and Last Name fields OR SSN field for QUICK search to succeed.
	First Name: Last Name: SSN: Search
	Manage Accommodations
	Name: John Doe Candidate ID: 20008285 Exam: NCLEX_Breaks Status: New
	Accommodation Status
	Extra Time Revoked [This accommodation was revoked because] The candidate requested that the accommodation be revoked. (R. Olson) Days)
	Comments R. Olson: Candidate does not need extra time. (optional) Add:
Choose <b>Revoked</b> from this field for the accommodation	Other Select status: If you select the Revoke status, you must select a reason from this list: (Insulin Pump) Revoked
to be revoked	Comments R. Olson: R. Olson: R. Olson: R. Olson: Coptional) Add: Another reason as described in the comment. The accommodation requests to be replaced with a different request. The accommodation type is incorrect. The accommodation type is incorrect. The accommodation was associated with the incorrect candidate. The candidate requested that the accommodation be revoked. The client requested that the accommodation be revoked.
and select a <b>Reason</b>	Add Accommodation Display Diagnosis Make Changes
	Return to Registration Details  PEARSON VUE Copyright © 1996-2014 Pearson Education, Inc. or its affiliate(s). All rights reserved.  NCCSBN NCLEX® Examinations National Council of State Boards of Nursing

- 3. In the **Reason** field, choose a reason for revoking the accommodation from the list of available reasons:
  - Another reason as described in the comment.
  - The accommodations request is to be replaced with a different request.
  - The accommodation type is incorrect.
  - The accommodation was associated with the incorrect candidate.
  - The candidate requested that the accommodation be revoked.
  - The client requested that the accommodation be revoked.
- 4. Enter a comment in the request's **Comments** field (optional).

It is good practice to provide detailed information about the reason for revoking the accommodation.

5. Click the Make Changes button.

A message confirms that the accommodation was revoked, and the accommodation's status is shown as Revoked.

# Viewing or editing the list of readers (assistive personnel)



Pearson VUE uses a vendor to provide assistive personnel services including readers. We will use the jurisdiction reader list as a last resort.

Use the Readers function to view or edit the list of available readers, recorders, sign language interpreters or other assistive personnel in the Board of Nursing's/Regulatory Body's jurisdiction. This list is used primarily by the Pearson VUE Accommodations Coordinator, who will refer to it when making arrangements for candidates who have been granted assistive personnel accommodations.



The Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body user must be assigned the **Readers** (may edit the Readers list) permission to add, edit or delete assistive personnel from the Readers list.

Follow these steps to view assistive personnel for the Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body.

1. Click Lists on the blue navigation bar.

The Lists page is displayed.

		NCLEX®	Administratio
nber Board NCLEX® Lists			
<u>Home</u> Contact Pearson VUE Logout	Candidate Search         Requests         Pr           Flowchart         Incidents         Se           Reports         Lists         Se           Batch Processing         Users         Se	<u>ofile</u> at Availability Search	
You must en	er data in both First Name and Last	Name tields OR SSN tield for QUI	CK search to succ
First Name:	Last Name:	SSN:	Seam
	Lists		
NCSBN Education Programs			
Readers			
Test Center Locator			
PEARSON Copyright © 1	196-2014 Pearson Education, Inc. or	■ ■ NCSBN NC	LEX <sup>®</sup> Examinatio

2. Click the **Readers** link.

The Readers page is displayed. Assistive personnel are listed alphabetically by last name.

	NCLEX® Administration
Member Board NCLEX® Lists	
Home         Candidate Search         Requests         Profile           Contact Pearson VUE         Flowchart         Incidents         Seat Availability Sear           Logout         Reports         Lists         Seat Availability Sear           Batch Processing         Users         Users	<u>ch</u>
You must enter data in both First Name and Last Name fields OR SSM	I field for QUICK search to succeed.
First Name: Last Name: S	sn: Search
Readers	
Name Type Start Date End Date	
reader, regular Reader 8 Sep 2005 25 Feb 2015	
Smith, Susan Reader 1 Jun 2000	
testtt, testtt Reader 25 Feb 2005 27 Feb 2005	
New Reader	
Return to Lists	
PEARSON NCC Copyright © 1996-2014 Pearson Education, Inc. or its affiliate(s). All rights reserved.	BN NCLEX® Examinations



Although this page is titled "Readers," it can be used to enter information for any type of assistive personnel associated with the Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body. The term "reader" here applies to all assistive personnel.

If the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body user is assigned the **Readers** (may edit the Readers list) permission, the **New Reader** button is displayed on this page. Click it to add a new reader.

3. Click a name in the **Name** column.

The Reader Details page is displayed, as shown on the next page.

iber Board NCLEX	<sup>®</sup> Lists					NCLEX® Admin	nistratio
<u>Home</u> <u>Contact Pears</u> <u>Loqout</u>	on VUE Can Rep Bate	didate Search chart orts h Processing	<u>Requests</u> Incidents Lists Users	<u>Profile</u> Seat Availat	<u>pility Search</u>		
You	must enter dat	a in both First	Name and	Last Name fiel	lds OR SSN fie	ld for QUICK searc	h to succ
First Nar	ne:	La	ist Name:		SSN:		Sear
		Re	eader D	etails			
First Name:	regular						
Last Name:	reader		-				
Type:	Reader		-				
Start Date:	September ·	08 - 20	05 🔻				
End Date:	February	- 25 -	2015	•			
	10 miletada						
Home Address (1):	42 weisn ar		-				
Home City:	vourtourn						
Home State:	Minnesota						
Home Zin:	55111						
Home Phone:	651-985-5533		-				
Work Address (1):							
Work Address (2):							
Work City:							
Work State:			•				
Work Zip:							
Work Phone:							
	Comment						
reads well col	.d.		*				
			-				
		_					
		Sa	ive				
		Delete	Reader				
		Return to	Reader List				
EARSON	inht @ 1996-20				NOOD	NT	

In addition to the person's name and work and home contact information, this page lists the type of assistance he or she provides (Reader, Recorder, Sign Language Interpreter or Other).

- If the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body user is NOT assigned the **Readers** (may edit the Readers list) permission, he or she can view the information on this page but cannot make any changes.
- If the Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body user is assigned the **Readers** (may edit the Readers list) permission, **Save** and **Delete Reader** buttons are displayed at the bottom of the Reader Details page and can be used to edit or delete the selected reader.
- 4. Click the **Return to Reader List** to return to the Readers page.

### Adding a reader

1. On the Readers page, click the **New Reader** button at the bottom of the list.

The Add New Reader page is displayed.

ber Board NCLEX®	Lists					ICLEX® Admin	istrati
<u>Home</u> <u>Contact Pears</u> <u>Logout</u>	on VUE F	andidate Sea lowchart eports atch Processi	rch Request Incidents Lists ng Users	<u>Profile</u> Seat Availab	<u>ility Search</u>		
You	must enter d	lata in both Fi	rst Name and	Last Name fiel	ds OR SSN fiel	d for QUICK search	n to suc
First Nan	ne:		Last Name:		SSN:		Sea
		A	dd New I	Reader			
First Name:							
Last Name:			]				
Туре:	Reader		•				
Start Date:	May	▼ 12 ▼	2014 🔻	10			
End Date:	Month	▼Day	✓ -Year	-			
Home Address (1):							
Home Address (2):							
Home City:							
Home State:			•				
Home Zip:							
Home Phone:							
Work Address (1):			]				
Work Address (2):							
Work City:							
Work State:			<b>T</b>				
Work Zip:							
Work Phone:							
2	Comme	nts:					
			^				
			-				
		(	Save				
		Return	to Reader Lis	<u>t</u>			
Copyring Copyring	ight © 1996- its affiliate(:	2014 Pearson s). All rights n	Education, In eserved.	c. or <b></b>	NCSB	N NCLEX® Ext	aminati

2. Complete the fields.

In addition to the person's name and address fields, complete the following fields:

- **Type:** Select the type of assistance the person provides by choosing *Reader*, *Recorder*, *Sign Language Interpreter*, *Other*, or *Translator*.
- **Start Date** and **End Date:** Specify the start and end date of the person's availability.
- **Comments:** Type any recommendations or comments as needed about the person or his or her services. For example, include the locations at which the person is available to provide the service.
- 3. Click the **Save** button.

A message confirms that the reader was saved.

4. Click the **Return to Reader List** to return to the Readers page. The reader added is displayed in the list.

### Editing or deleting a reader

1. On the Readers page, click name of the reader in the **Name** column to edit or delete.

The Reader Details page is displayed.

ber Board NCLEX	<sup>®</sup> Lists				NOLEXO Administrati
<u>Home</u> <u>Contact Pears</u> <u>Logout</u>	ion VUE Ca Flo Rej Bat	ndidate Search wchart ports ch Processing	Requests Incidents Lists Users	<u>Profile</u> Seat Availability Search	
You	must enter da	ta in both First	Name and	Last Name fields OR SSN f	ield for QUICK search to suc
First Nar	ne:	L	ast Name:	ssi	v: Sea
		D	and or D	otaile	
		K	auer D	etais	
First Name:	regular				
Last Name:	reader				
Туре:	Reader		•		
Start Date:	September	• 08 • 20	05 🔻		
End Date:	February	<ul><li>▼ 25</li><li>▼</li></ul>	2015	*	
Home Address (1):	42 welsh dr				
Home Address (2):					
Home City:	yourtown				
Home State:	Minnesota		•		
Home Zip:	55111				
Home Phone:	651-985-5533	3			
Work Address (1):	[		1		
Work Address (2):					
Work City:					
Work State:			•		
Work Zip:					
Work Phone:			]		
	Commen	ts:			
reads well col	Ld.		*		
			*		
		Se	ave		
		Delete	Reader	]	
		Return to	Reader List		
EARSON					DN

- 2. Edit or delete the reader.
  - To edit the reader, change fields as needed.
  - To delete the reader, click the **Delete Reader** button. Deleting a reader removes the reader from the Readers page, but does not affect any scheduled appointments candidates have with him or her. The system will prompt the Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body user to confirm to delete the reader. Click **OK** or Cancel.
- 3. Click the Save button.

A message confirms that the changes were saved.

4. Click the **Return to Reader List** link.

The Readers page is displayed.

5

# Reports

This chapter covers the following topics:

- ✤ About reports
- Report descriptions and examples

### About reports

The reporting portal allows Boards of Nursing/Regulatory Bodies to view operational reports, quarterly reports and access Candidate Performance Reports.

#### \* Operational Reports

There are several operational reports that you may run related to candidates who have registered for the NCLEX in your jurisdiction.

#### \* Quarterly Reports

Each quarter (Jan, Apr, Jul, Oct) a set of reports are made available that provide data on educational program information for your jurisdiction. NCSBN will notify you when these reports are ready for you to view.

#### \* Candidate Performance Reports

Your jurisdiction may choose to provide candidates with information about the exam they have taken. These are optional reports that you may make available to the candidate. Some jurisdictions print the Candidate Performance Reports for candidates who have failed so that they can review the diagnostic information.

The reporting portal can be accessed through the Reports link in the blue navigation bar at the top of the NCLEX Administration web page. The Boards of Nursing/Regulatory Bodies are the only entities with access to the reporting portal. It is through this portal that Boards of Nursing/Regulatory Bodies can access quarterly reports detailing candidate results listed by education programs in their jurisdiction.



If you have questions about reports, please use the online-help within the reporting system. The reporting portal can be accessed through the **Reports** link in the blue navigation bar at the top of the NCLEX Administration web page.

You must have the **MBReports** (may run Member Board reports) permission to request and view reports for your jurisdiction. Only Boards of Nursing/Regulatory Bodies can access quarterly reports detailing candidate results listed by education programs by jurisdiction.

In addition to the information available to you in the reporting portal, Candidate Reports (score reports) are also available via the NCLEX Admin website. See below for further details.

 Use Adobe Acrobat Reader to view and print reports stored in PDF (Portable Document Format).

### Report descriptions and examples

This section provides details on the Candidate Report that is available through the NCLEX administration website.

#### Candidate Report

The Candidate Report is a letter indicating whether or not a candidate passed an NCLEX exam. If the candidate failed, the report also includes information to help candidates interpret their performance and prepare for retaking the exam. Boards of Nursing/Regulatory Bodies are responsible for sending these letters to candidates who take the exam. This report is delivered in PDF format.

This report can be generated in the following ways:

- To select specific candidates for whom you want to print results reports, display the **Result Available** page or the **On Hold for Results** page. After you submit the request from one of those pages, your report request will appear on the **Requests** page like any other report.
- On the Registration Details page, click the Generate Candidate Report link that appears for registrations with a Result Available status. You must be assigned the RegStatus (may edit registration status) permission.



It is the Board of Nursing's/Regulatory Body's responsibility to send a Candidate Report to candidates. It is also the Board of Nursing's/Regulatory Body's responsibility to send the Candidate Performance Report to candidates who did not pass the exam.

The Candidate Report may or may not show a candidate's photo. Whether the candidate's photo is displayed depends on a setting in the jurisdiction's profile called **Use Candidate Photo on Reports**.

## Below is a sample **Candidate Report** for a candidate that passed the exam.


# Below is a sample **Candidate Performance Report** for a candidate that failed an exam.

NCLEX-PN <sup>®</sup> CANDIDATE National Council Licensur	PERFORMANCE REPORT e Examination for Practical Nurses	EXAMINATIONS INCSEN
Test Date:	05/07/14	
Test Center:	61030 - Bloomington	
John Doe 123 1st Street Edina, MN 55438 United States		
Candidate Number:	20104111	
Date of Birth:	05/05/1074	
Social Security Number:	05/03/18/4	
Program Code:	US10105800	
Program Name:	LAKE SUPERIOR COLLEGE	A LAND
A	DULUTH,MN	
1405 Wrong Allwrong, an National Council Licensure The NCLEX-PN <sup>®</sup> examina decision can be made. On 1 items. You answered <u>85</u> ite or just below it, had to answ decision to be made for tho	NCLEX examination applicant for the Minneso Examination for Practical Nurses. tion is a Computerized Adaptive Test (CAT) the he NCLEX-PN examination, no candidate is a ms. Only candidates whose performance was ver the maximum number of 205 items. Fewer se candidates whose performance was much	hat about of Nursing, HAS NOT PASSED the nat administers test items until a precise pass or fail administered fewer than 85 items or more than 205 close to the passing standard, either just above it items were required for a precise pass-fail lower than the passing standard.
1405 Wrong Allwrong, an National Council Licensure The NCLEX-PN <sup>®</sup> examina decision can be made. On i items. You answered <u>85</u> ite or just below it, had to answ decision to be made for tho Pass-fail decisions are bas examination, a candidate m or are below it. The purpos 05/07/14. The back of this f examination	NCLEX examination applicant for the Minneso Examination for Practical Nurses. tion is a Computerized Adaptive Test (CAT) the NCLEX-PN examination, no candidate is a ms. Only candidates whose performance was ver the maximum number of 205 items. Fewer se candidates whose performance was much ed upon the candidate's performance across ust perform ABOVE the passing standard. Cr e of this Candidate Performance Report is to g orm gives you more information about your performance of the second standard.	that Board of Nursing, HAS NOT PASSED the hat administers test items until a precise pass or fail diministered fewer than 85 items or more than 205 close to the passing standard, either just above it items were required for a precise pass-fail lower than the passing standard. the entire examination. To pass the NCLEX <sup>®</sup> andidates fail if they only meet the passing standard give you information about your performance on promance on the specific content areas of the
1405 Wrong Allwrong, an National Council Licensure The NCLEX-PN <sup>®</sup> examina decision can be made. On i tiems. You answered <u>85</u> lite or just below it, had to answ decision to be made for tho Pass-fail decisions are bas examination, a candidate m or are below it. The purpos 05/07/14. The back of this f examination. For each content area of th statement of your performan related to it. Your performan	NCLEX examination applicant for the Minneso Examination for Practical Nurses. tion is a Computerized Adaptive Test (CAT) the NCLEX-PN examination, no candidate is a ms. Only candidates whose performance was ver the maximum number of 205 items. Fewer se candidates whose performance was much ed upon the candidate's performance across just perform ABOVE the passing standard. Ca e of this Candidate Performance Report is to g orm gives you more information about your pe e examination, you will find the percentage of nee (your ability in that content area), and des ce in each content area is described in one of	that Board of Nursing, HAS NOT PASSED the hat administers test items until a precise pass or fail diministered fewer than 85 items or more than 205 close to the passing standard, either just above it items were required for a precise pass-fail lower than the passing standard. the entire examination. To pass the NCLEX <sup>®</sup> andidates fail if they only meet the passing standard give you information about your performance on erformance on the specific content areas of the the test represented by that content area, a cription of the content area with a list of topics if the following ways:
1405 Wrong Allwrong, an National Council Licensure The NCLEX-PN <sup>®</sup> examina decision can be made. On i items. You answered <u>85</u> lite or just below it, had to ansy decision to be made for tho Pass-fail decisions are bas examination, a candidate m or are below it. The purpos 05/07/14. The back of this f examination. For each content area of th statement of your performan elated to it.Your performan - Above the Passin - Below the Passin	NCLEX examination applicant for the Minneso Examination for Practical Nurses. tion is a Computerized Adaptive Test (CAT) the NCLEX-PN examination, no candidate is a ms. Only candidates whose performance was ver the maximum number of 205 items. Fewer se candidates whose performance was much ed upon the candidate's performance was much ed upon the candidate's performance Report is to g orm gives you more information about your per e examination, you will find the percentage of nee (your ability in that content area), and des ce in each content area is described in one of mg Standard a Standard ng Standard	at administers test items until a precise pass or fail administered fewer than 85 items or more than 205 close to the passing standard, either just above it items were required for a precise pass-fail lower than the passing standard. the entire examination. To pass the NCLEX <sup>©</sup> andidates fail if they only meet the passing standard give you information about your performance on rformance on the specific content areas of the the test represented by that content area, a cription of the content area with a list of topics the following ways:
1405 Wrong Allwrong, an I National Council Licensure The NCLEX-PN <sup>®</sup> examina decision can be made. On 1 items. You answered <u>85</u> lite or just below it, had to answ decision to be made for tho Pass-fail decisions are bas examination, a candidate m or are below it. The purpos 05/07/14. The back of this f examination. For each content area of th statement of your performan - Above the Passin - Near the Passin - Below the Passin - Below the Passin - Below the Passin - Below the Passin - Shove, near, or below the p standard in a given content	NCLEX examination applicant for the Minneso Examination for Practical Nurses. tion is a Computerized Adaptive Test (CAT) the NCLEX-PN examination, no candidate is a ms. Only candidates whose performance was wer the maximum number of 205 Items. Fewer se candidates whose performance was much ed upon the candidate's performance was much ed upon the candidate's performance Report is to g orm gives you more information about your per e examination, you will find the percentage of noce (your ability in that content area), and des ce in each content area is described in one or <i>ng Standard</i> <i>j Standard</i> <i>j Standard</i> inged to help you understand the strengths ar uur study before you take this Lest again. Plea ance on the content area. Also, you cannot a assing standard) to validate the pass-fail dec tt area, you should still study that area to m	Ata Board of Nursing, HAS NOT PASSED the hat administers test items until a precise pass or fail diministered fewer than 85 items or more than 205 close to the passing standard, either just above it items were required for a precise pass-fail lower than the passing standard. the entire examination. To pass the NCLEX <sup>®</sup> andidates fail if they only meet the passing standard give you information about your performance on arformance on the specific content areas of the the test represented by that content area, a cription of the content area with a list of topics if the following ways: d weaknesses of your performance. Use this se note that "near the passing standard" does not d your performance in the content areas (i.e. ision. If your ability is above the passing aintain your proficiency.
1405 Wrong Allwrong, an National Council Licensure The NCLEX-PN <sup>®</sup> examina decision can be made. On 1 items. You answered <u>85</u> ite or just below it, had to answ decision to be made for tho Pass-fail decisions are bas examination, a candidate m or are below it. The purpos 05/07/14. The back of this f examination. For each content area of th statement of your performan related to it. Your performan <i>. Above the Passin or Below the Passin Below the Passin these descriptions are dess information to help guide yo imply a satisfactory perform above, near, or below the p standard in a given conter</i>	NCLEX examination applicant for the Minneso Examination for Practical Nurses. tion is a Computerized Adaptive Test (CAT) the NCLEX-PN examination, no candidate is a ms. Only candidates whose performance was rer the maximum number of 205 items. Fewer es candidates whose performance was much ed upon the candidate's performance was much ed upon the candidate's performance across ust perform ABOVE the passing standard. C, e of this Candidate Performance Report is to g orm gives you more information about your per e examination, you will find the percentage of nee (your ability in that content area), and des ce in each content area is described in one of mg Standard p Standard signed to help you understand the strengths ar pur study before you take this test again. Plea ance on the content area. Also, you cannot a assing standard) to validate the pass-fail dec t area, you should still study that area to m	Ata Board of Nursing, HAS NOT PASSED the hat administers test items until a precise pass or fail diministered fewer than 85 items or more than 205 close to the passing standard, either just above it items were required for a precise pass-fail lower than the passing standard. the entire examination. To pass the NCLEX <sup>®</sup> andidates fail if they only meet the passing standard give you information about your performance on erformance on the specific content areas of the the test represented by that content area, a cription of the content area with a list of topics if the following ways: d weaknesses of your performance. Use this se note that "near the passing standard" does not dd your performance in the content areas (i.e. ision. If your ability is above the passing aintain your proficiency.

Candidate Name: John Doe	Candidate Number: 20104111	Test Date: 05/07/14
CONTENT AREAS		
The following describes your performance on each content ar	ea.	
<ul> <li>Coordinated Care (16 - 22% of the test)         <ul> <li>Collaborates with health care team members to facilita</li> <li>Related content includes but is not limited to: Advance Collaboration with Interdisciplinary Team; Concepts of Security; Continuity of Care; Establishing Priorities; EtH Responsibilities; Performance Improvement (Quality In Safety and Infection Control (10 - 16% of the test)</li> <li>Contributes to the protection of clients and health care</li> <li>Related content includes but is not limited to: Accident Principles; Handling Hazardous and Infectious Materia Occurrence/Variance; Restraints and Safety Devices; S Precautions/Transmission-Based Precautions/Surgical</li> </ul> </li> <li>Health Promotion and Maintenance (7 - 13% of the test)         <ul> <li>Provides nursing care for clients that incorporates know prevention and/or early detection of health problems.</li> <li>Related content includes but is not limited to: Aging Printechniques; Devleopmental Stages and Transitions; Huifestyle Choices; Self-Care.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	BELOW T te effective client care. Directives; Advocacy; Client Care Assignr Management and Supervision; Confidentii ical Practice; Information Technology; Info nprovement); Referral Process; Resource I BELOW T personnel from health and environmental (Error/Injury Prevention; Emergency Respo Is; Home Safety; Reporting of Incident/Eve Safe Use of Equipment; Security Plan; Sta (Asepsis. BELOW T wledge of expected stages of growth and d occess; Ante/Intra/Postpartum and Newborn lealth Promotion/Disease Prevention; High BELOW T	HE PASSING STANDARD nents; Client Rights; ality/Information mmed Consent; Legal Management. HE PASSING STANDARD hazards. onse Plan; Ergonomic nt/Irregular ndard HE PASSING STANDARD levelopment, as well as n Care; Data Collection Risk Behaviors; HE PASSING STANDARD
<ul> <li>Psychosocial integrity (8 - 14% of the test)</li> <li>Provides care that assists with promotion and support.</li> <li>Related content includes but is not limited to: Abuse or Dependencies; Coping Mechanisms; Crisis Intervention Mental Health Concepts; Religious and Spiritual Influer Management; Support Systems; Therapeutic Commun Basic Care and Comfort (7 - 13% of the test)</li> <li>Provides comfort to clients and assistance in the perfort Related content includes but is not limited to: Assistive Comfort Interventions; Nutrition and Oral Hydration; Per Pharmacological Therapies (11 - 17% of the test)</li> <li>Provides care related to the administration of medicatiti</li> <li>Related content includes but is not limited to: Adverse Calculations; Expected Actions/Outcomes; Medication</li> </ul>	of the emotional, mental and social well-be Neglect, Behavioral Management; Chemi n; Cultural Awareness; End of Life Concep nces on Health; Sensory/Perceptual Altera iication; Therapeutic Environment. BELOW T mance of their activities of daily living. Devices; Elimination; Mobility/Immobility; rsonal Hygiene; Rest and Sleep. BELOW T ons and monitors clients who are receiving Effects/Contraindications/Side Effects/Inte Administration; Pharmacological Pain Mar	HE PASSING STANDARD ing of clients. ing of clients. is; Grief and Loss; tions; Stress HE PASSING STANDARD Non-pharmacological HE PASSING STANDARD parenteral therapies. ractions; Dosage tagement.
<ul> <li>Reduction of Risk Potential (10 - 16% of the test)</li> <li>Reduces the potential for clients to develop complication existing conditions.</li> <li>Related content includes but is not limited to: Changes Potential for Alterations in Body Systems; Potential for Detential for Complications from Surgical Procedures a Physiological Adaptation (7 - 13% of the test)</li> <li>Participates in providing care for clients with acute, chr</li> <li>Related content includes but is not limited to: Alteration Imbalances; Medical Emergencies; Radiation Therapy.</li> </ul>	BELOW T ons or health problems related to treatmen /Abnormalities in Vital Signs; Diagnostic Tr Complications of Diagnostic Tests/Treatm and Health Alterations; Therapeutic Proced BELOW T onic or life-threatening physical health con s in Body Systems; Basic Pathophysiolog ; Unexpected Response to Therapies.	HE PASSING STANDARD ts, procedures or ests; Laboratory Values; ents/Procedures; ures. HE PASSING STANDARD ditions. y; Fluid and Electrolyte

6

# Incidents

This chapter covers the following topics:

- Incident overview
- Viewing Incident Reports for candidate registrations

# Incident overview

Use the Incidents area of the NCLEX Administration website to view a list of incidents associated with registrations in your jurisdiction, and to view details about selected incidents.

At Pearson VUE, Incident Reports are filed using an online system. This system allows testing centers to file reports about any problems or issues related to a specific candidate registration. For example, if a power outage interrupted a candidate's exam, a candidate arrived without proper identification or a candidate was suspected of misconduct, the test administrator would file an Incident Report. (Other Pearson VUE users, such as NCLEX Candidate Services representatives and VSS personnel, can also file reports.) In some cases, such as when there is suspected cheating, exam results are automatically put on hold when an Incident Report is filed against a candidate's registration. The incident can then be investigated before results are released to the candidate. For more information on the reasons for results being put on hold, refer to the Member Board Manual (MBM) or the NCLEX Administration Manual (NAM).

The test administrator or other staff person provides as much information as possible about the incident, specifies which candidates were involved and attaches supporting files, if applicable. When the Incident Report is submitted, the system automatically assigns a priority level (urgent, high, medium or low) and routes it to the appropriate person at Pearson VUE for further action. This person consults NCSBN and the responsible Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body when necessary. Each person who is involved with addressing the issue can enter notes about the issue and the investigation until the investigation is complete. If necessary, an incident can be escalated to someone at a higher level in the Pearson VUE organization. When the issue has been resolved, the Incident Report is closed.

# Viewing Incident Reports for candidate registrations

Follow the steps below to view Incident Reports. You can also view the Incident Reports associated with a selected registration on the Registration Details page.

1. Click **Incidents** on the blue navigation bar.

The Incidents page is displayed, listing incidents that occurred for candidate registrations in your jurisdiction.

nber Board NCLEX® Incide	ıts		NCLEX®	Administrati
<u>Home</u> Contact Pearson VUE Logout	Candidate Search Flowchart Reports Batch Processing	Requests Profile Incidents Teat A Lists Users	vailability Search	
You must ente	r data in both First I	Name and Last Nam	e fields OR SSN field for QUI	CK search to suc
First Name:	La	st Name:	SSN:	Sea
Date         Incident Status         Cc           05/08/2014 292984         Open         49           05/08/2014 292984         Open         49	enter Candidate 089 <u>Doe, John</u>	Topic CPR - Missing Bi	ometric: Bernie Pieface	
Date Range: Last 7 Days	Display	CPK - Missing Bi	ometric: narmi ficlex	
PEARSON NUE Copyright © 199 its affiliat	6-2014 Pearson Edu e(s). All rights reser	ucation, Inc. or eved.	NC SBN NC National Council of State Boards og	LEX <sup>®</sup> Examinati f <i>Nursia</i> g

2. In the **Date Range** field, specify the dates for which you want to view incidents, and click the **Display** button.

You can display incidents that occurred during the last 24 hours, 2 days, 7 days, 30 days or 60 days, or display all incidents for all days. (Incident Reports remain accessible for 90 days.)

The columns display summary information about the incidents.

- The **Date** column lists the date on which the incident occurred. Incidents are listed by date, starting with the most recent.
- The **Incident** column lists the ID assigned to the Incident Report.
- The **Status** column lists the Incident Report's current status. Reports can be Open or Closed.

•	The Center	column	identifies	the testi	na center	by its code.

- The **Candidate** column identifies the candidate with whom the incident is associated. To view the Candidate Details page for the candidate, click his or her link in this column.
- The **Topic** column displays a brief description of the incident.
- 3. In the **Topic** column, click an incident's link to view its details.

The Incident Details page is displayed. This page shows information about when and where the incident occurred and which candidates were involved. It also indicates who filed the Incident Report and lists the person at Pearson VUE to whom it is currently assigned.

			VSS Incid	ent De	tails		
Click this link		Add Comments To Incident 292983					
to return to							
the Incidents					-		
page.			Details of Incident 292	983 Si	ite Number: 44115		
	Inf	form	ation		Priority: Medium		
	Ope Date	en e:	8-May-2014 03:16PM	Customer	zTest Lab - Config 40 - Samina Wasey -ST1		
	ЕТА		11-May-2014	Contact:	VUE Automated User VUE Automated User		
	Stat	tus:	Open	Phone:			
	Subj	ject:	CPR - Missing Biometric: harini nclex	Fax:			
	Ope By:	ened	VUE Automated User VUE Automated User				
	vss	Tech:	Admas Mollaeee	E-Mail:			
	Inc	ciden	t Description				
	Prot	blem: I	Biometric path was null.				
	Rep	ort Re	quest History ID: 10				
	Ord	er Iter	n ID: 5064253				
	Bion	netric	Path:				
	Is I	mage (	On Candidate Reports: 1				
	Dia <u>c</u> Zip	gnostic Source	: Information: e Path/File:				
	Dat	e/Time	e: 05/08/2014 15:16:27.809				
Comments entered	Cu	istom	er Comment				
for the incident are	Dat	<b>te:</b> 12 <sup>.</sup>	May-2014 Action: Custo	mer Upda	te Tech: Web User		
displayed in this	Bior	metrics	were not included for this incident.				
area.							
			Add Comments T	o Incider	nt 292983		
			Poture to NCLEV <sup>(R)</sup> Ada	ninietration	Incidente Dario		
			Netan to NGLEA® Au	innau adun	помона г дус		
	Conv	/right@	) 1996-2014 Pearson Education. Inc.	or its affi	liate(s). All rights reserved. 800 837 8969		
	cop)		Terms of Servic	e   Priva	cy Policy		

4. **Print** the Incident Report (optional).

Choose **Print** from your browser's File menu and select printing options. The available printing options depend on your selected printer and the browser you're using. Refer to your printer guide for more information.

5. Click the Return to NCLEX Administration Incidents Page link.

You return to the Incidents page.

# Administration

This chapter covers the following topics:

- Changing your jurisdiction's profile
- ✤ Managing user accounts

# Changing your jurisdiction's profile

Use the Profile page to choose settings that affect various areas of the NCLEX Administration website.



To change any information on this page, you must have the **MBData** (may edit Member Board data) permission. If this permission is not assigned to you, you can view the Profile page but cannot edit its fields.

1. Click **Profile** on the blue navigation bar.

The Profile page is displayed. This page allows you to view and update the Profile information for your jurisdiction.

Member Board NCI	X® Jurisdi	tion Profile				NCLEX® Admir	nistration
<u>Home</u> <u>Contact P</u> <u>Logout</u>	earson VUE	Candidate Sea Flowchart Reports Batch Process	irch Requests Incidents Lists ing Users	<u>e Profile</u> <u>Seat Availabilit</u>	<u>y Search</u>		
Ŷ	'ou must ente	r data in both Fi	rst Name and	Last Name fields (	DR SSN fiel	d for QUICK searc	h to succeed.
First	Name:		Last Name:		SSN:		Search
-							
		Profile: Mir	nesota B	oard of Nui	sing		
					RN Boa	ard	
	The member must be mar Portal websit <u>a Board of N</u>	board contact i aged from the I e. Please access ursing.	nformation NCSBN s <u>Contact</u>		V PN Boa	ard	
					CGFNS	Required	
					Allow	Data Sharing	
Other Contact:	Sandra L. M	acKenzie		Į	Allow	Early Results Re	elease
Business Day Starts At:	8:00				Allow	Other Readers	
Business Day	4:30			[	Use Ca	ndidate Photo (	Dn
Fiscal Year	Jul 1			[[	Mask (	andidate SSN (	)n
Begins:				[	Mask (	Candidate DOB	Dn
				ī	Report Genera	s ate mailing labe	ls with
				L	Diagno	ostic Reports	d
				12	Diagno	stic Reports	
				45	Retake	e Delay (in Days	5)
				0	Delay	in ATT Dates (ir	ı Days)
				90	Days A	ATT Is Valid	
				0	Mail D	iagnostic Repor	ts (0-3)
				0	Mail Pa	ass Reports (0-	3)
				0	Mail Fa	ail Reports (0-3	)
				0	Mail Ta	aken Reports (O	-3)
		Batch	Processi	ng Options:			
Import Type:	ELST -				Receiv	e JURISOUT	
					Receiv	e ATT Expiratio	ns in
					Receiv Expira	e Registration tions in JURISO	UT
* Indicates required	fields.						
			Save	)			
PEARSON	pyright © 199 its affiliat	6-2014 Pearson e(s). All rights re	Education, Ine	e. or	CSB	N NCLEX® Ex State Boards of Nursing	aminations

2. Edit fields as needed.

An asterisk appears on the page next to required fields.

- Other Contact, Business Day Starts at, Business Day Ends at and Fiscal Year Begins: These fields are for information purposes. (Type up to five characters in the Business Day Starts at, Business Day Ends at and Fiscal Year Begins fields.)
- **RN Board** and/or **PN Board:** Select the fields that correspond to the types of exams your jurisdiction offers. For example, if your jurisdiction offers NCLEX-RN and NCLEX-PN exams, check both the RN Board and PN Board boxes.
- **CGFNS Required:** Select this option if your jurisdiction requires non-US educated candidates to provide a CGFNS certification number when registering for the NCLEX exam. CGFNS refers to The Commission on Graduates of Foreign Nursing Schools. This agency provides credentialing services for foreign-educated nurses, along with a certification program designed to predict success on the NCLEX-RN exam. (This field currently has no effect on candidate registration.)
- Allow Data Sharing: Select this option to allow certain candidate data to be shared between your jurisdiction and others. (Typically, you can see candidate data for your own jurisdiction only.) For example, the Education Program Summary Report lists registration and identification information for candidates who graduated from an educational program in your jurisdiction. If a candidate applied for licensure in another jurisdiction whose Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body does not have data sharing enabled, dashes are displayed instead of the candidate's name on the report.



This field needs to be set according to your state mandates. Changing this field's setting affects the information displayed in reports.

- Allow Early Results Release: If this option is selected, candidates in your jurisdiction can pay to receive their unofficial exam results before receiving the official results from your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body. Candidates can receive their results (a pass/fail result only) by visiting the NCLEX Candidate website. **Note:** This option is not applicable to Canadian Regulatory Bodies.
- Allow Other Readers: NCSBN permits Pearson VUE to use a vendor to provide assistive personnel. As a result, Allow Other Readers is not a field that you will need to configure.
- Use Candidate Photo On Reports: Select this option to specify whether your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body allows candidates' photos to be included on candidate result reports, such as the Candidate Report and the Candidate Performance Report. Deselecting the field prevents the photo from appearing on reports. (Government law may prevent a Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body from including a candidate's image on reports.)

- Mask Candidate SSN on Reports: If this option is selected, the candidate SSN is not displayed on the Candidate Performance Report.
- **Mask Candidate DOB on Reports:** If this option is selected, the candidate DOB is not displayed on the Candidate Performance Report.
- Generate mailing labels with Diagnostic Reports: Select this option to generate mailing labels along with the CPR report.
- Generate double-sided Diagnostic Reports: Select this option to include a blank page if a candidate report is only a single page and multiple candidate reports are generated in a single file. This ensures each candidate report prints as a separate document.
- **Retake Delay (in Days):** Users can determine the number of days candidates must wait between exam sessions.



Per the NCSBN retake policy, Board or Nursing/ Regulatory Bodies must select a minimum or 45 days for the retake delay.

• Delay in ATT Dates (in Days): In this field, Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body users specify the number of days after the ATT (Authorization to Test) email is sent before the candidate's eligibility period begins. Once a candidate is declared eligible, he or she receives the ATT email.



Since the ATT emails are sent to candidates, this should be set to zero (0) so candidates can schedule their exam immediately upon receipt of their ATT email.

- **Days ATT is Valid:** Specify the number of days after a candidate is declared eligible within which the candidate must take the exam. Candidates must schedule AND take the exam during their ATT validity period.
- Mail Diagnostic Reports (0-3), Mail Pass Reports (0-3), Mail Fail Reports (0-3) and Mail Taken Reports (0-3): This field is no longer used.

The **Batch Processing Options** near the bottom of the Profile page indicate how your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body handles batch processing files. These fields can be changed only by authorized Pearson VUE personnel. If your Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body does not use batch processing, the following message appears in this section: "Your member board does not participate in batch processing."

- **Import Type** (send jurisin files to Pearson VUE): Indicates when your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body sends eligibility information to Pearson VUE. The following options are available:
  - **None:** Your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body does not send jurisin files to Pearson VUE.

- **ELST (Eligibility Standard):** Your Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body sends a candidate's eligibility status to Pearson VUE after a candidate registers.
- **ELHD (Eligibility Hold):** Your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body sends a candidate's eligibility status to Pearson VUE before the candidate registers.
- **REGS:** This field is no longer used.
- **Receive JURISOUT:** "Yes" is displayed next to this field if your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body receives jurisout files.
- **Receive ATT Expirations in JURISOUT:** "Yes" is displayed next to this field if your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body receives Service Order Cancel transactions in the jurisout file for ATTs that expire.
- Receive Registration Expirations in JURISOUT: "Yes" is displayed next to this field if your Board of Nursing/ Regulatory Body receives Service Order Cancel transactions in the jurisout file for registrations that expire due to the 365-day rule.
- 3. Click the **Save** button.

A message confirms that your changes were saved.

## Managing user accounts

An NCLEX Administration website user with the appropriate permission can use the Manage Users page to edit user accounts.



We highly recommend that one or two people at your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body be designated as administrators for your team. These administrators should be assigned with care, and should be the only users allowed to edit other user accounts. This should be the same person who maintains the users for NCSBN Passport.

Important points about user accounts:

When user accounts are created, they are assigned permissions. You must have the Users (may edit user logins and permissions) permission to edit user accounts. In addition, you can only assign or remove permissions for other users if those permissions are also assigned to your own account.

## User permissions

Permissions control the tasks you can perform and the data to which you have access. Below are the permissions you can be assigned.

- CandData (may edit candidate data): This permission allows users to edit a selected candidate's information, such as the name and address. To edit a candidate's registration status, however, users must be assigned the **RegStatus** permission described below.
- MBData (may edit Member Board data): This permission allows users to edit your jurisdiction's profile.
- MBReports (may run Member Board reports): This permission allows users to view Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body reports.
- Readers (may edit the Readers list): This permission allows you to add, edit and delete readers and other assistive personnel.
- RegStatus (may edit registration status): This permission allows you to change candidates' registration status. This permission also controls whether you can enter accommodations requests for a candidate.
- Users (may edit user logins and permissions): This permission allows users to edit user accounts and to view, grant and remove their permissions.

## Displaying the Manage Users page

1. Click **Users** on the blue navigation bar.

The Manage Users page is displayed.

CLEX® Web l	Jsers			NCLEX® Adminis
<u>t Pearson VUE</u>	Candidate Search Flowchart Reports Batch Processing	n <u>Requests</u> Incidents Lists Users	<u>Profile</u> <u>Seat Availability Search</u>	
You must ent	er data in both First	Name and L	ast Name fields OR SSN fi	eld for QUICK search to
irst Name:	L	ast Name:	SSN	•
	м	anage II	sers	
authorized to a view the user d	ccess the NCLEX® /	Administratic	n Web site for this jurisdi	ction.
User	rname Perm	issions	Last Login	
<u>sum</u> kusu	md Candl MBDa MBRe Reade RegSt Users	Data ta ports ars atus	4:54 AM Fri, Jan 7, '11	
ceva	ns Candl MBDa MBRe Reade RegSt Users	Data ta ports ers atus	5:51 PM Sun, Oct 31, '10	
<u>iya</u> gabb	ich Candi MBDa MBRe Reade RegSi Users Users	Data ta ports ers atus	3:25 PM Fri, Jun 22, '12	
ey:				
escription ay edit candidat ay edit Member ay run Member ay edit the Read ay edit registrat ay edit user logi	e data Board data Board reports ders list ion status ins and permissions			
	t Pearson VUE You must ent irst Name: authorized to a view the user do user sum kusu ceva via gabb ey: escription ay edit candidat ay edit the Reaa ay edit the Reaa ay edit the registrat	CLEAC Web Users  Candidate Search  Pearson VUE  Candidate Search  Reports Batch Processing  You must enter data in both First  rst Name:  Username  Username  Perm  sum  kusumd  Candi  MBDa  MBRe  Reade  Reade  RegSI  Users  cevans  Candi  MBDa  MBRe  Reade  RegSI  Users  ey:  escription  ay edit candidate data ay run Member Board data ay run Member Board data ay edit the Readers list ay edit the Readers list ay edit tues logins and permissions	Clear of the second data search Requests Incidents Each Processing Users     Search Processing Users     You must enter data in both First Name and L     irst Name:     Last Name:     Last Name:     Last Name:     Manage U authorized to access the NCLEX® Administratic view the user details.     Username Permissions     RegStatus     Users     cevans CandData     MBReports     Readers     RegStatus     Users     cevans CandData     MBReports     Readers     RegStatus     Users     users     cevans CandData     MBReports     Readers     RegStatus     Users     users     cevans CandData     MBReports     Readers     RegStatus     Users     users	LEEX* Web Users         t Pearson VUE       Candidate Search Reports Batch Processing       Requests Users       Profile Seat Availability Search Lists Batch Processing         You must enter data in both First Name and Last Name fields OR SSN first Name:       Last Name:       SSN         Wanage Users       SSN         authorized to access the NCLEX® Administration Web site for this jurisdiview the user details.       Last Login         sum       Kusumd       CandData MBData MBReports RegStatus Users       4:54 AM Fri, Jan 7, '11         wath CandData MBData MBReports RegStatus Users       5:51 PM Sun, Oct 31, '10 MBData MBRaders RegStatus Users       3:25 PM Fri, Jun 22, '12         wath CandData MBReports RegStatus Users       3:25 PM Fri, Jun 22, '12         wath Canddata MBRaders RegStatus Users       3:25 PM Fri, Jun 22, '12         wath Canddata Wath CandData MBRaders RegStatus Users       3:25 PM Fri, Jun 22, '12         wath Canddata Wath Reports RegStatus Users       3:25 PM Fri, Jun 22, '12         wath Canddata data ay edit candidate data ay edit member Board reports ay edit the Readers list ay edit the gatars list ay edit user logins and permissions

This page lists all user accounts (including your own), usernames and assigned permissions. The **Permissions Key** area lists the permissions that you can assign to a user. (Since you can only assign permissions that are assigned to your own account, this key may not include all possible permissions.)

- To add an account, please contact the Passport Administrator for your Board of Nursing/Regulatory Body.
- To edit an account, click a name in the **Full Name** column.

This list includes permissions that are assigned to you and that you can assign to other users.

### Editing a user account

1. Click **Users** on the blue navigation bar.

The Manage Users page is displayed.

2. In the Full Name column, click the user account you want to edit.

The User Details page appears, displaying the selected user's information. If you don't have permission to edit accounts, this page displays the user's last name, first name, username and permissions, but you cannot edit the permissions fields. If you wish to edit the Name, Username, and Email fields this must be done in Passport.

Member Board NCLEX® W	eb Users	N	CLEX® Administration
<u>Home</u> <u>Contact Pearson V</u> <u>Loqout</u>	Candidate Search Requests <u>UE</u> Flowchart Incidents Reports Lists Batch Processing Users	<u>Profile</u> <u>Seat Availability Search</u>	
You mus	t enter data in both First Name and L	ast Name fields OR SSN field	for QUICK search to succeed.
First Name:	Last Name:	SSN:	Search
	User Det	ails	
Last Name: First Name: Username: Email: Permissions: Permissions changes will take effect the next time this user logs in.	Jddin Cay cayuddin Way edit Member Board data May edit candidate data May edit registration status May edit user logins and permiss May run Member Board reports May edit the Readers list	sions	
	Save		
	Return to Manage Users	2	
PEARSON NUE Copyright its a	© 1996-2014 Pearson Education, Inc affiliate(s). All rights reserved.	or NCSB1 National Council of Sta	N NCLEX <sup>®</sup> Examinations the Boards of Nursing

- 3. Edit the fields.
  - To edit the account, make changes in the fields. For example, click to uncheck a box to unassign a permission.
- 4. Click the **Save** button.

A message confirms that your changes were saved.

5. Click the **Return to Manage Users** link at the bottom of the page.

The Manage Users page is displayed.

# **Batch Processing**

This chapter covers the following topics:

- Batch processing jurisin/jurisout files
- Jurisin and jurisout file formats

# Batch processing jurisin/jurisout files

Use the Batch Processing page to transfer jurisin and juris out files to and from Pearson VUE.

1. Click Batch Processing on the blue navigation bar.

The Batch Processing page is displayed.

Use these options to download candidate registrations from Pearson VUE.



candidate registrations to Pearson VUE.

The Batch Processing page provides status information about recent batch files and allows you to upload new jurisin files and download recently generated jurisout files. • At the top right, the page lists available jurisout files from Pearson VUE that you can download by clicking their link in the **Download** column.



Jurisout files that you downloaded using Pearson VUE's SFTP site are displayed on the Batch Processing page as if they have not been downloaded.

- At the lower right, the page lists recently uploaded, processed or pending jurisin files; click the **Upload** button to upload a specified file to Pearson VUE.
- 2. Select the **range of dates** for which you want to display jurisin and jurisout files.

By default, the Batch Processing page displays jurisout files created within the last 7 days and jurisin files that were uploaded and processed within the last 7 days. You can adjust how many jurisin or jurisout files are displayed by selecting a new date range in the **Date Range** field and clicking the **Display** button.

- 3. Download a jurisout file or upload a jurisin file.
- 4. Use shortcut links to quickly search for candidates or to view candidates whose results are available or on hold, or who did not take their exams.

The links in the **View status lists** and **Candidate Search** sections provide access to up-to-the-minute candidate data. The data uploaded to Pearson VUE in a jurisin file should be available on the NCLEX Administration website approximately 30 minutes after it is uploaded, as long as there are no errors in the file.

- Use the **View status lists** items to view candidates with a *Result Available, On Hold for Results,* or *Exam Not Taken* status.
- Use the **Candidate Search** options to search for a candidate by specifying his or her *Name*, *Candidate ID*, *Social Security Number* (when applicable), *Date of Birth*, *Phone Number*, or *Registration ID*.

### Downloading a jurisout file

Follow these steps to save a candidate records file from Pearson VUE on your system.

1. Click **Batch Processing** on the blue navigation bar.

The Batch Processing page is displayed. Below the **Jurisout/ Juriserr files for download** heading, jurisout files available for downloading are listed, along with the date on which they were created and their file size (in bytes). The number of jurisout files shown depends on the range of dates selected in the **Date Range** field. Each jurisout file displays a link in the **Download** column. 2. Click the link for the **jurisout** file you want to save to your system.

A File Save ribbon appears.

Do you want to open or save jurisout140507a.dat from webtst1c.pea	rsonvue.com?	×
Open	Save 🔻	Cancel
	Save	
	Save as Save and	open

3. Click the **Save** drop-down arrow and select the **Save as** option.

A Save As dialog box appears, prompting you to specify where you want the file saved.

Organize 🔻 New folder					•	0
퉬 Perforce	*	Name	· ·			Date mod
鷆 Program Files						
퉬 Program Files (x86)			No items ma	itch your searc	:h.	
🌲 ProgramData						
鷆 temp						
🍌 Temp2	E					
🍶 Themes						
🌗 Users						
🍌 VUETemp						
📙 Windows	-	•	m			
File name: jurisout14050	7a.dat					•
Save as type: DAT File (*.da	t)					-

4. Select a folder and click **Save**.

The file begins downloading. When the download is complete, the following download complete ribbon is displayed.

The jurisout140507a.dat download has c	ompleted.				×
	Open	•	Open folder	View downloads	

- 5. Click the **Close** button.
- 6. Import the downloaded file in your system.

## Uploading a jurisin file

Follow these steps to send candidate records in a formatted file to Pearson VUE.

1. Click Batch Processing on the blue navigation bar.

The Batch Processing page is displayed. Below the Jurisin files uploaded heading, each jurisin file recently uploaded to Pearson VUE is listed, along with the date on which it was uploaded and processed and its size. The number of jurisin files shown depends on the range of dates selected in the **Date Range** field. Below the jurisin files are fields for identifying a jurisin file to upload and activating the upload.

2. Click the Browse button next to the Upload File field.

🧉 Choose File to Upload × 😋 🔵 🗢 📙 « OSDisk64 (C:) 🕨 VUETemp 👻 🍫 🛛 Search VUETemp Q Organize 🔻 New folder HE -0 PerfLogs Name Date modified Type Size Perforce jurisin140507a.dat 5/13/2014 1:40 PM DAT File 12 KB 퉬 Program Files 鷆 Program Files (x86) 📕 ProgramData 📗 temp Temp2 Themes Users 📕 VUETemp 🚹 Windows Winnt - -All Files (\*.\*) File name: jurisout140507a.dat -Open Cancel

A standard Choose File to Upload dialog box is displayed.

3. Locate and select the file you want to import, and click **Open**.

The file's path is displayed in the Upload File field.

4. Click the **Upload** button.

A message confirms that the selected file was uploaded to Pearson VUE, and the file appears last in the jurisin files uploaded list. Jurisin files are processed immediately after they are uploaded to Pearson VUE. (After they have been processed, Pearson VUE archives them.) The uploaded data will be available on the NCLEX Administration website approximately 30 minutes after being uploaded, as long as there are no errors in the file. After the jurisin file is uploaded, you can view the Jurisin Log Report.

# Jurisin and jurisout file formats

Please see the NCLEX Batch Processing Technical Specifications document for information on the file formats for the jurisin.dat and jurisout.dat files.

# Index

### A

accommodations
Accommodation Place Holder 4-6, 4-12
Add Accommodations page 4-17
adding 4-16
adding comments4-16, 4-18
adding when batch processing used4-6
assistive personnel 4-11
equipment 4-11
extra testing time4-9
list of supported4-10, 4-17
non-standard4-11, 4-18
overview
permission to add7-6
reader 4-12
Readers list 4-21
recorder 4-12
revoking 4-4, 4-19
Accommodation Place Holder4-2
separate room 4-12
sign language interpreter 4-12
status
when to enter
when to set eligibility4-6
adding
accommodations requests 4-16
readers
USEF accounts 1-4, /-5, /-6
address
for tosting contors
history of changes 2.45
adjustable font size
adjustable form size
role 1-4
tasks 1_6
Adobe Acrobat Reader 2-1
aid 4-11
Allow Data Sharing profile option 7-3
Allow Farly Results Release option 7-3
Allow Other Readers option 7-3
appointments
scheduling
with accommodations
assigning permissions
assistive personnel
Assistive Personnel Agreement
ATT (Authorization to Test)
dates displayed for candidate
specifying delay7-4
specifying number of eligible days7-4
viewing expired 3-21

when batch processing used	4-5
when sent to candidate 4-2, 4-3,	4-7
Awaiting Eligibility status	3-6
Awaiting Eligibility page3-	-12

#### В

background colors, adjusted	4-11
batch processing	2-4
Accommodation Place Holder	4-12
accommodations	4-6
Batch Processing page	8-2
downloading jurisout files	8-3
profile settings	7-4
reports	8-2
Special Conditions flag	4-6
uploading jurisin files	8-5
Board of Nursing	
user tasks	1-4
breaks during exam	4-9
browsers	2-1

#### С

CandData permission 3-5, 3-33, 7-6 candidate
oditing 2.25
history of changes
Condidate Details page 2, 7, 2, 10, 2, 25, 4, 2
Candidate Details page 2-7, 2-10, 3-35, 6-3
data
snaring
displaying3-/
flowchart2-4
ID3-36
ID, searching by2-5, 2-8
marking eligible or denied
name
editing 3-35
history of changes 3-44
searching by2-6, 2-8
phone number
photo
allowing on reports7-3
displayed3-46
pre-1994 exam registration
registrations (See registrations)
results (See results)
searching for
signature displayed 3-46
signatare displayed

candidate-related reports Candidate Report
printing
ways of generating
centers, locating2-16
CGFNS certification
closing registrations 3-4, 3-17, 3-25
color overlay4-11
comments
adding to accommodations4-18
comments, adding to accommodations4-16
contact information
Contact History page3-45
for candidates3-35
for jurisdiction7-3
contrast, adjusted4-11

#### D

date of birth
editing3-35
searching for candidates by 2-8
Days ATT is Valid option7-4
Delay in ATT Dates option
deleting
readers4-27
user accounts1-4, 7-5, 7-6
denied accommodations 4-6
denied registrations3-19
Denied Registrations page
Denied Registrations status
denying eligibility 3-3, 3-11, 3-47
diagram of candidate status 2-4
directions to testing centers2-18
downloading candidate data (See batch process-
ing)

#### Е

early results 7-3
editing
candidate information 7-6
jurisdiction profile7-6
Readers list
registration status 3-41, 7-6
user accounts 1-4, 7-5, 7-6, 7-8
education programs2-11
searching by state2-12
eligibility
accommodations changes 4-5
declaring 3-3, 3-11
Eligible Registrations page
Eligible status 3-6
permission to edit7-6
related tasks1-5
specifying number of days7-4
status
viewing or editing 3-5

when batch processing used
Exam History page 3-42
extra time accommodations
no-show candidates 3-15
not taken 3-15
Exam Not Taken page 3-15
Exam Not Taken status
previously taken
types2-7, 2-10
offered by jurisdiction
Review & Challenge 3-26
selected by candidates 3-39
expired registrations
Expirations page 3-22
Expired Registrations status
exporting candidate data (See batch processing)

#### F

fail (See results)	
FAIR (Free And Immediate Retest)	process3-16
Flowchart page	2-4, 3-5
font, enlarged for exam	
foreign nursing programs	
certification	3-36, 7-3
FTP site	

#### G

generating candidate reports .			3-41
options	3-25,	3-28,	3-31
granted accommodations			4-6

#### Η

hold placed on results	.3-4, 3-30
home page	

#### Ι

Identification page 3-46
import type7-4
importing candidate data (See batch processing)
Incident Reports 2-4, 3-30, 3-41, 6-1
Incidents page 6-2
printing 6-4
ineligible 3-11
international certification
Internet Explorer2-1

#### J

jurisdiction

contact information7-3
settings 2-4, 7-2
permission to edit7-6
sharing candidate data with other jurisdictions
7-3
Jurisdiction Profile
tasks1-6
jurisin/jurisout files2-4, 8-6
accommodations4-6
jurisin files
uploading8-5
jurisout files
downloading8-3
profile settings7-4

#### Κ

kevboard	adjustment	4-1	11
Reybourd	aujustinent	•	• •

#### L

2-16, 4-21
2-3
2-1
2-3

#### Μ

Manage Accommodations page 4-15
Manage Users page7-7
MBData permission
MBReports permission7-6
monitor adjustments 4-11

#### Ν

#### 0

-	
on hold	3-4, 3-30
On Hold for Results page	
On Hold for Results status	3-6
overview of website	1-3

#### Ρ

pass (See results)
PDF format reports
Pearson Professional Centers, locating
permissions 1-4, 7-5, 7-6
assigning or editing 7-6
CandData 3-5, 3-33, 7-6
MBData
MBReports
Readers
RegStatus
User
phone number
editing for candidate3-37
for contacting testing centers
searching for candidates by2-8
photo
allowing on candidate reports7-3
displayed of candidate
PN exams
pre-1994 exam registration 3-37, 3-43
printing
candidate reports 3-41
Incident Reports6-4
results3-25
processed registrations 3-4, 3-17
Processed Registrations page
Processed Registrations status
profile2-4
batch processing settings7-4
permission to edit7-6
Profile page7-2
viewing7-2
programs
viewing2-11

#### Q

-					
qui	ck	results	 	 	7-3

#### **R** rea

а	ders	
	accommodation	
	adding	4-25
	allowing other readers	7-3
	deleting	
	editing	4-27
	list of available readers	4-21
	Readers page	
	Readers permission	4-21, 7-6

recorder					
accommodation4-12					
list of available recorders4-21					
Registration Source					
registration status					
Awaiting Eligibility 3-6					
Denied Registrations 3-6					
Eligible					
Exam Not Taken					
Expired Registrations					
New Registrations					
On Hold for Results					
Processed Registrations					
Result Available					
registrations					
closing 3-4. 3-25					
editing 3-41					
marking eligible or denied 3-11					
overview 3-2					
permission to edit 7-6					
provious for candidate 3-12					
processed (closed) 3 17					
receiving 3-2 3-0					
Pogistration Audit Trail page 2.47					
Pagistration Datails page 27 2 10 3 38 4					
14 6 2					
14, 0-2 Degistration Source 2.20					
registration status					
registration status					
viewing denied					
viewing exams not taken					
Viewing expired					
RegStatus permission 3-5, 3-24, 3-41, 7-6					
Regulatory Body					
user tasks 1-4					
reports					
allowing candidate photos					
batch processing 8-2					
Candidate Report, ways of generating .3-25					
Incident Reports					
permission to request and view					
Requests					
results					
Incident Reports					
NCLEX QUICK Results					
on noid 3-4					
printing3-25					
Result Available page					
Result Available status					
viewing those on hold					
ways of viewing3-24					
Review & Challenge exam3-26					
revoking					
Accommodation Place Holder 4-2					
accommodations					
RN exams 7-3					

## S

saving
candidate records 8-3
scheduled breaks 4-9
scheduling appointments4-3, 4-19
with accommodations 4-4
score (See results)
searching
for candidates2-4, 2-5, 8-3
for education programs
by state 2-12
for testing centers 2-16
Search Results page2-7, 2-10
Seat Availability Search
separate room accommodation 4-12
settings for jurisdiction
sharing candidate data with other jurisdictions7-
3
sign language interpreter
accommodation 4-12
list of available interpreters
signature
displayed for candidate 3-46
signing
off website
onto website 2-1
Social Security number
editing
searching for candidates by 2-6, 2-8
source of registrations 3-39
Special Conditions flag 4-6
status
accommodations3-39, 4-7
incident 6-2
registration2-4, 2-7, 2-10
editing 3-41
support (VSS)
supported browsers 2-1

#### Т

table height adjustment	4-11
Taken result	3-26
telephone number, searching for candidate	es by2-
8	
testing centers	
locating	2-16
Testing Center Locator page	2-18
testing time accommodations	4-9
text, adjusted	4-11

#### U

unscheduled breaks	4-9
uploading candidate data (See batch proces	sing)
Use Candidate Photo On Reports option	7-3
user accounts	2-4
adding 1-4,	7-5

deleting	. 1-4, 7-5
editing 1-4,	7-5, 7-8
user permissions	7-6
User Name (audit trail)	3-47
Users permission	7-6

### V

	VSS	(VUE	Support	Services)		. 2-
--	-----	------	---------	-----------	--	------

#### W

website	1-3
addresses	
FTP site	
home page	2-3
navigating	
user accounts	